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NOTICE TO DEFEND

YOU HAVE BEEN SUED IN COURT. If you wish to defend against the
claims set forth in the following pages, you must take action within twenty (20) days
after this First Amended Complaint and Notice are served, by entering a written
appearance personally or by attorney and filing in writing with the Court your
defenses or objections to the claims set forth against you. You are warned that if
you fail to do so the case may proceed without you and a judgment may be entered
against you by the Court without further notice for any money claimed in the First
Amended Complaint or for any other claim or relief requested by the Plaintiff. You

may lose money or property or other rights important to you.



YOU SHOULD TAKE THIS PAPER TO YOUR LAWYER AT ONCE. IF
YOU DO NOT HAVE A LAWYER, GO TO OR TELEPHONE THE OFFICE SET
FORTII BELOW. THIS OFFICE CAN PR OVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION

ABOUT HIRING A LAWYER. LINTURAVIAS

IF YOU CANNOT AFFORD TO HIRE A LAWYER, THIS OFFICE MAY

BE ABLE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION ABOUT AGENCIES
THAT MAY OFFER LEGAL SERVICES TO ELIGIBLE PERSONS AT A
REDUCED FEE OR NO FEE TO FIND OUT WHERE YOU CAN GET LEGAL
HELP:

Court Administrator

Courthouse

Bellefonte, PA 16823

(814) 355-6727
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PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY o

Defendant.

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a breach of contract action brought by Dr. Graham B. Spanier
(“Dr. Spanier”) against Pennsylvania State University (“Penn State” or

“University”). The lawsuit arises out of negative and disparaging statements made

by Penn State and certain members of the University’s Board of Trustees, and other



breaches of contract by Penn State — following Dr. Spanier’s separation from Penn
State as president of the University.'

2. Upon his resignation from the Presidency of Penn State in November
2011, Dr. Spanier and Penn State entered into a contract setting forth the terms of
the separation (“Separation Agreement”). The contract prohibited Penn State from
making negative comments about Dr. Spanier — with limited exceptions — and
required Penn State to undertake reasonable efforts to ensure that no members of the
Board of Trustees made prohibited negative comments about Dr. Spanier.

3. In addition, Penn State was (and remains) required to provide Dr.
Spanier administrative support commensurate with that received by other tenured
Penn State professors and former presidents, including an office location, a
secretary, and IT support.

4 The contract also requires Penn State to pay all expenses and legal fees
incurred by Dr. Spanier arising out of any alleged acts or omissions occurring during

his time as President, specifically including all such legal fees and expenses arising

out of the Grand Jury’s indictments relating to the acts of former Penn State assistant

from his position as President.

! In accordance with the Court’s Order and Opinion issued on October 25, 2014, Plaintiff has
removed from this Amended Complaint the former Counts [ and II, and has added additional

factual allegations concerning former Counts I1I-V and VII (now Counts I-IIl and V).



5. Penn State has repeatedly breached the Separation Agreement in
several material respects. Penn State has breached the contract’s prohibition on
negative and untrue statements regarding Dr. Spanier by making multiple negative
and untrue public statements about Dr. Spanier. In July 2012 Penn State scheduled
two press conferences in which Penn State’s President and two members of Penn
State’s Board of Trustees (“Board”) repeatedly made negative and untrue comments
about Dr. Spanier. Penn State also organized and/or acquiesced in the organization

of separate media appearances for members of its Board of Trustees to make

6.  Penn State has also failed to provide Dr. Spanier with administrative

support, office space, and teaching opportunities as required by the Separation

for legal fees and related expenses despite being contractually obligated to do so.
7. Dr. Spanier brings this action to vindicate his rights under civil law, to
restore his reputation as a highly-regarded educator and university administrator, and

to obtain redress and damages for Penn State’s repeated breaches of Dr. Spanier’s

THE PARTIES AND OTHER RELEVANT THIRD PARTIES

8.  Plaintiff Graham B. Spanier is an individual residing in Centre County
in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Between 1995 and 2011, Dr. Spanier was
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the President of Pennsylvania State University. Dr. Spanier has resided in Centre
County, Pennsylvania, for over 30 years and continues to do so today.

9.  Defendant Pennsylvania State University is a nonprofit corporation
ganized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, with its principal
place of business at 201 Old Main, University Park, Pennsylvania 16802. Following
his resignation as President of Penn State, Penn State contracted with Dr. Spanier to
govern the terms of his resignation and continuing employment.

10. Gerald A. “Jerry” Sandusky (“Sandusky”) was an assistant football
coach at Penn State from 1969 to 1999. In 19
Mile, a Pennsylvania non-profit organization that supported at-risk and
underprivileged youth. Before his indictment, Sandusky was generally lauded for
his charity work and efforts on behalf of youth, receiving awards and praise from
politicians, famous athletes, and others. Following a three-year investigation,
Sandusky was indicted in November 2011 and subsequently atrested and charged
with dozens of counts relating to alleged sexual crimes involving underage youth.
On June 22, 2012 a jury found Sandusky guilty of 45 of 48 counts. On October 9,
2012 Sandusky was sentence

11. The Second Mile was a Pennsylvania non-profit charity organization

that served underprivileged youth. Headquartered in State College, Pennsylvania, it

was founded by Sandusky in 1977 and claimed to serve up to 100,000 Pennsylvania



kids a year. By 2009, The Second Mile had revenues of $3 million per year. Several
Penn State Trustees also had relationships with the organization. The Second Mile
ceased operations following the fallout from the Sandusky scandal.

12.  The Special Investigations Task Force (“Task Force™) was a working
group convened by the Penn State Board of Trustees in November 2011. Penn State
Trustee Kenneth Frazier served as Chair of the Task Force, and Trustee Ronald
Tomalis was Vice Chair. In November 2011, the Task Force engaged Louis Freeh
and his law firm, Freeh Sporkin & Sullivan, to prepare a written report regarding
“the recently publicized allegations of sexual abuse at the facilities and t
failure of the Pennsylvania State University (“PSU”) personnel to report such sexual
abuse to appropriate police and government authorities.” The resulting report,
released on July 12, 2012, is commonly referred to as the Freeh Report.

13. Kenneth C. Frazier (“Frazier”) is currently the Chairman, President,
and Chief Executive Office of Merck & Co., Inc. He was elected to the Penn State
Board of Trustees as a business and industry Trustee for a three-year term beginning
in July 2009, and was reelected in 2012. Frazier served as Chair of the Task Force.

14. Keith Masser (“Masser”) is currently the Chairman and Chiel

Executive Officer of Sterman Masser, Inc. He was elected to the Penn State Board

of Trustees by delegates from agricultural societies effective July 2008, and was



subsequently reelected for second and third terms. He was elected Chair of the
Board in January 2013.

15. Karen Peetz (“Peetz”) is currently the President of BNY Melton. Peetz
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lected to the Penn State Board of Trustees in 2010 as a business and industry
Trustee and became Chairman of the Board of Trustees in 2012. Peetz resigned from

the Board of Trustees effective January 15, 2015.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

16. The Defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction in this Commonwealth
because it is incorporated in Pennsylvania, its principle place of business is in
Pennsylvania, it has significant contacts with Pennsylvania, it regularly transacts
business in Pennsylvania, it caused harm or injury by acts or omissions in
Pennsylvania, and breached a contract executed and performed in Pennsylvania.

17. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over this action
pursuant to 42 Pa.C.S. § 931 because no other Pennsylvania court has exclusive

original jurisdiction over this action.
18.  Venue is proper in Centre County pursuant to Pennsylvania Rules of
Civil Procedure 1006, 2179, and 2130 because the causes of action described herein

arose in Centre County and transactions and occurrences from which the causes of

action arose took place in Centre County.
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FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Dr. Spanier Serves As President Of Penn State

19. Between 1995 and 2011, Dr. Spanier served as the President of The
Pennsylvania State University (“Penn State”) and worked primarily in University
Park, Centre County, Pennsylvania.

20. Penn State is one of the largest and most comprehensive universities in
the United States. Penn State’s academic, research, and athletic operations are
highly decentralized; the university operates in more than 140 locations, with 24
campuses, more than 97,000 students and approximately 47,000 employees. It was
excellence.

21.  Penn State is not only a national leader in academics, it is also a national
leader in a broad range of endeavors, including intercollegiate athletics, with its
sports teams participating in NCAA Division I and the Big Ten Conference. Among
its 31 teams competing at the highest levels of NCAA competition, Penn State is
particularly known for the tradition and success of its football program, which
represents the University as a member of the Big Ten Conference. Joe Paterno
became head coach of the Nittany Lions in 1966, after 16 years as an assistant coach,
and remained head coach until 2011. As head coach, Paterno led the Nittany Lions

to 409 victories, two national championships, and 24 bowl victories. Although Penn
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State had not been previously punished in its 156-year existence for athletic
infractions by the NCAA, on July 23, 2012, the NCAA removed 112 of those
victories, based solely and directly on the Freeh Report’s conclusions. The NCAA
ored these wins in January 2015 as part of a settlement of a lawsuit filed by
officials of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Paterno’s motto of “Success with
Honor” was, in fact, practiced by the football program, which graduated 85% of its
players during Paterno’s tenure, with many named Academic All Americans.

22.  Penn State is also an important center of research in dozens of
disciplines, including national defense-related research. The University is home to
the Applied Research Laboratory (“ARL”), a Department of Defense-designated,

University Advanced Research Center. The ARL was established at Penn State in

1945 and maintains a lon

rm strategic relationship with the U.S. Navy in addition
to providing support for other government agencies. The ARL performs basic and
applied research, exploratory development, advanced development in systems
engineering, and manufacturing technology in support of national security. The

ARL is also the largest research unit within Penn State, with more than 1,000 faculty
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and staff. It was in the context of overseeing such rescarch
required to maintain a top-secret security clearance.

23. Before becoming President, Dr. Spanier had been Chancellor of the

University of Nebraska-Lincoln, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs
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at Oregon State University, Vice Provost for Undergraduate Studies at the State
University of New York at Stony Brook, and had held faculty and administrative
posts at Penn State.

24. , and marriage and
family therapist. He earned his Ph.D. from Northwestern University, where he was
a Woodrow Wilson Fellow. He is the author of more than 100 publications in his
field, including 10 books. His scholarship has focused on children, youth, and
families. He is a clinical member and fellow of the American Association for
Marriage and Family Therapy and former president of the National Council on
Family Relations. He was the founding editor of the Journal of Family Issues. He

is considered a leading scholar in his field and is the recipient of three honorary

25. A national leader in higher education, Dr. Spanier was the first
university president to receive the TTAA-CREF Theodore M. Hesburgh Award for
Leadership Excellence. Dr. Spanier has chaired the Association of American
Universities, the National Association of State Universities and Land-Grant
Colleges, the Big Ten Conference Council o
Division I Board of Directors. He led the Kellogg Commission on the Future of
State and Land-Grant Universities, was a founding member of the Internet2 Board,

U.S. Chair and international Vice Chair of the Worldwide Universities Network, and
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co-chair, with the President of the Recording Industry Association of America, of
the Committee on Higher Education and the Entertainment Industry. Spanier served

as chair of the Bowl Championship Series (BCS) Presidential Oversight Board.
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. Mucho professional career has been dedicated to the
social and emotional development of children and youth, advocacy for the well-
being and protection of children, and national and international initiatives to foster
improvement in the lives of children and youth. He has served on the boards of
several child development and youth development organizations, including the
Board of Directors of 4-H and the Board of Governors of Junior Achievement
Worldwide. He was also Chair of the Board of Christian Children’s Fund (now

known as Child Fund International).

27. D

X

. Spanier has served on the boards of numerous not-for-profit
organizations, community groups, and charities. He has also served on the boards
of directors of three corporations overseen by regulatory bodies such as the Security
and Exchange Commission and the Federal Reserve.

28.  As President of Penn State, Dr. Spanier oversaw one of the nation’s
largest and most comprehensive universities, with 47,000 employees on 24
campuses, annual revenues approaching $5 billion, and a physical plant of 1,700

buildings. He led two capital campaigns for Penn State and enhanced the resources
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of the University by managing to raise approximately $3.5 billion in philanthropic
contributions.

29.  During his presidency, Dr. Spanier created the Penn State World
e, and the Presidential Leadership Academy.
He led the creation of numerous academic units, including the College of
Information Sciences and Technology, the School of International Affairs, and
programs in forensic sciences and security and risk analysis. He launched the
International Center for the Study of Terrorism. Dr. Spanier also oversaw the merger
with the Dickinson School of Law.

30. During his tenure, applications soared to more than 120,000 per year,
enrollments grew to 97,000, and the academic standing of dozens of programs rose
1d international rankings. His goals were to make Penn State the “top
student-centered research university in America” and for the university to lead the
nation in “the integration of teaching, research, and service.” The theme of the
recently-completed, $2 billion fund raising campaign was “For the Future: The
Campaign for Penn State Students.” He oversaw the design and construction of
dozens of new buildings, adding millions of square feet of space for instruction,
research, recreation, and community support. He was recognized with the American

Institute for Architects award for outstanding contributions by a non-architect, and
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received the Elizabeth Holtzman Award for his improvements to campus
landscaping, master planning, and community relations.
31.  Dr. Spanier’s work as President of Penn State was supported by 12 vice

ents and more than 40 vice provosts, deans, and

hancellors, whose work was

le]

in turn supported by several hundred department heads and administrative staff. As
is common for chief executives of institutions of the size and complexity of Penn
State, Dr. Spanier substantially relied on normal administrative processes to address
issues in the University community as they arose.

32.  Dr. Spanier has worked with the federal government on various

=

projects pertaining to law enforcement, defense, homeland security, intelligence, and
national security, and Dr. Spanier had held several high-level security clearances
dating back to 1995. The federal government has accordingly performed numerous
investigations into Dr. Spanier’s conduct over the years — including a four-month
investigation lead by the Federal Investigative Service after the Sandusky scandal
broke publicly that reconfirmed Dr. Spanier’s fitness to continue to hold a Top Secret
security clearance. Special clearances he has held require a polygraph administered
by highly trained federal specialists.

33.  Dr. Spanier served as chair of the National Security Higher Education
Advisory Board, a member of the National Counterintelligence Working Group, and

a member of the Board of Advisors of the Naval Postgraduate School and the Naval

[
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War College. He has received numerous recognitions for his contributions to law
enforcement and national security, including being honored as one of the “Most
Influential People in Security,” the “Wings of Law” Award from the Respect for
he award for “Exceptional Public Service” presented by the FBI.
He has been a frequent speaker at FBI and other governmental and educational
conferences and seminars throughout the nation on topics related to national
security. He is the recipient of the Warren Medal “for outstanding contributions to
the national security of the United States of America.”

Gerald (“Jerry”) Sandusky

34. Gerald “Jerry” Sandusky was an assistant coach for the Penn State
football team from 1969 to 1999, and separately managed the charity organization
he founded called The Second Mile. He heid the position of defensive coordinator
from 1977 until his retirement.

35. Before his criminal indictment and conviction, Sandusky was a man
. As noted, he was founder of The Second
Mile, an organization devoted to the social development of disadvantaged youth. He
and his wife served as foster-parents to numerous children and themselves adopted
six children.

36. Dr. Spanier did not interact with Sandusky personally. Dr. Spanier had

spoken with Sandusky in only one formal meeting an encountered him only in

—
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passing at football games, events, and the like, but Dr. Spanier has never had a
personal conversation with Sandusky.

37.  In 1998, Sandusky retired from Penn State after being informed by head
coach Joe Paterno that Sandusky was not being considered as Joe Paterno’s
replacement. He coached one additional season following his 1998 retirement. By
2001, Sandusky was no longer employed in any capacity by Penn State. Sandusky
did, however, retain his leadership role at The Second Mile.

38.  Dr. Spanier had no direct relationship with The Second Mile. He never
served on its board, never attended a meeting, and had no awarene of'its operations,
staff, or the many young people served by The Second Mile organization.

39. In sharp contrast to Dr. Spanier, several members of the Penn State
Roard of Trustees were involved and had a direct relationship with The Second Mile.

40. Additionally, The Second Mile personnel, including child
psychologists, along with members of the Penn State Board of Trustees had

extensive contact with Sandusky over the many years of his leadership of The

Second Mile and actually regularly observed Sandusky and his interactions with The



41. On information and belief, during the fall of 2008, the Pennsylvania
Attorney General’s Office began investigating allegations that Sandusky had
sexually abused boys whom he had supervised as an employee of The Second Mile.

42. In November 2011, multiple criminal charges were brought against

Sandusky alleging that he had sexually abused a number of minors associated with

43. In November 2011, Tim Curley (“Curley”), the former Athletic
Director at Penn State, and Gary Schultz (“Schultz”), the former Senior Vice-
President for Finance and Business at Penn State, were criminally indicted for failing
to report Sandusky’s crimes. Curley and Schultz were each charged in connection
with an incident reported to have occurred in 2002 — later found to have been 2001
(“the 2001 incident” or “the McQueary/Sandusky incident”) — in which an assistant
coach, Michael McQueary (“McQueary”), observed Sandusky taking a shower and
allegedly engaging in inappropriate contact with a 10- or 12-year-old boy in one of
the Penn State athletic facilities.

44, Notwithstanding the Attorney General’s comprehensive investigation

into Sandusky’s sexual abuse of children, the Attorney General found no evidence

to bring charges against Dr. Spanier in November 2011.
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Dr. Spanier Enters Into A Separation Agreement With Penn State

45. In the immediate aftermath of the November 2011 criminal charges
against Sandusky, Curley and Schultz, Dr. Spanier offered to resign as President of
Penn State if he would be a distraction for the University as it dealt with the crisis.
On November 9, 2011, the Penn State Board of Trustees voted to accept Dr.

Spanier’s resignation as President of Penn State under the “Termination Without

46. At the time of his resignation, Dr. Spanier and Penn State were parties
to a July 1, 2010 Employment Agreement that set forth the terms of Dr. Spanier’s
employment with Penn State.

47. A copy of the 2010 Employment Agreement is attached to this First
Amended Complaint as Exhibit E.

48. The 2010 Employment Agreement stated that Penn State “wishes to
continue the employment of Dr. Spanier as President of the University in recognition
further arrangements which will suitably recognize the extraordinary responsibilities
and duties of Dr. Spanier and will reward him for his many unique accomplishments
thus far during his time as President of the University.”

49. By 2011 Dr. Spanier had received 16 consecutive exceptionally

positive annual reviews and the 2010 Employment Agreement was his fifth



consecutive such multi-year contract, a highly unusual and affirming circumstance
in higher education.

50. Inthe 2010 Employment Agreement, there were three provisions under
which Dr. Spanier’s position as President could have been terminated, including
“For Cause,” “Without Cause,” and by “Resignation.” Under either the “For Cause”
or “Resignation” provisions of the 2010 Employment Agreement, Dr. Spanier would
have foregone any future compensation and/or benefit from Penn State. Under the
termination “Without Cause” provision, Dr. Spanier was entitled to certain ongoing
compensation and benefits.

51. Contrary to media reports, Dr. Spanier was not fired from his position

as President. Indeed, Dr. Spanier offered to resign his position. After offering his

9 the Board of Trustees accepted his resignation. Far from firing Dr. Spanier, the
Penn State Board of Trustees determined Dr. Spanier’s resignation would be treated
as a termination “Without Cause” for purposes of the 2010 Employment Agreement.
Accordingly, Dr. Spanier was entitled to future compensation and continued
employment with the University.

52.  Nevertheless, in subsequent public statements and media statements,
members of the Board of Trustees shifted their commentary to reflect the notion that

Dr. Spanier was fired, including a false story that they fired Dr. Spanier for issuing
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unauthorized statements and for failing to keep the Board of Trustees informed
during the Sandusky investigation, further disparaging Dr. Spanier, suggesting the

appearance of wrongdoing, and setting the stage for Louis Freeh’s defamation of Dr.

court of public opinion.

53, To memorialize the terms of his separation as President of Penn State,
Dr. Spanier and Penn State entered into a Confidential Separation Agreement on
November 15, 2011 (“Separation Agreement”).

54.  Under the terms of the Separation Agreement, Dr. Spanier relinquished
his position on the University’s Board of Trustees, the presidency of the Corporation
for Penn State, and other duties tied specifically to his presidency. At the same time,
however, Dr. Spanier remained a tenured member of the Penn State faculty in the
Department of Human Development and Family Studies of the College of Health
and Human Development, with the titles of President Emeritus, University
Professor, and Professor of Human Development and Family Studies, Sociology,
Demography, and Family and Community Medicine.

5

incorporates the terms of Sections E.5 and

I
J.

E.6 of Dr. Spanier’s 2010 Employment Agreement, which provides for a one-year

post-Presidency sabbatical transition period, after which Dr. Spanier would continue
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o0



A7 AN al

to hold a position as a tenured faculty member. Section 4(d) of the Separation
Agreement states:

(d) During the post-Presidency transition period referred to in
Section E.5 of the Employment Agreement, the University will
provide Dr. Spanier with administrative support to assist him
with his responsibilities, including computer access and IT
support, in the manner previously provided to past presidents of
the University, in addition to all support referred to in the last
paragraph of Section E.6 of the Employment Agreement.
Following the post-Presidency transition, the University will
provide Dr. Spanier with administrative support commensurate
with that provided with other tenured faculty members and
University Professors, and will continue to provide the
administrative support referred to in the last paragraph of

JE Y

Section E.6 of the Employment Agreement.

56. The last paragraph of Section E.6 of the 2010 Employment Agreement
states: “The University shall provide Dr. Spanier with administrative support,
including an office and a staff assistant to assist him with his responsibilities
following the conclusion of the presidency. The terms of Section E.6 shall survive
the expiration of this Agreement.”?

57. The Separation Agreement also provides that Penn State will reimburse
Dr. Spanier for all attorneys’ fees and all expenses he incurs in connection with
“matters relating to the grand jury presentment and his termination from the position

of President of the University.” The Separation Agreement further provides that

2 a1, -s o

2 Emphasis added unless othert
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Penn State will continue to indemnify Dr. Spanier in accordance with the terms o
Section J of the 2010 Employment Agreement. Section J of the 2010 Employment
Agreement provides that Penn State shall indemnify Dr. Spanier for all legal fees,
inancial amounts incurred while serving in his
capacity as President of the University (“Covered Costs™). Section J further provides
that Dr. Spanier shall continue to be indemnified subsequent to termination of his

employment as President with respect to acts or omissions occurring while he was

serving as President.

58. Paragraph 13 of the Separation Agrecment contains a non-
disparagement clause. Paragraph 13 states:

The University will not, and will use reasonable efforts to cause
the members of the Board of Trustees not to, make any negative
comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, to their professional

colleagues or to any other members of the public, unless
required by law or to comply with legal obligations and/or to
provide truthful information in connection with ongoing or
forthcoming investigattons.

59. Paragraph 14 of the Separation Agreement states that in the event of a
breach of any provision of the Separation Agreement, the prevailing party in any
litigation over such breach shall be entitled to an award of reasonable counsel fees
and expenses incurred in investigating and litigating such breach.

60. The Separation Agreement does not in any way provide that the

Agreement shall be terminated or cease to operate in the event that Dr. Spanier is

o
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criminally charged. Accordingly, the Separation Agreement survives and remains
in effect to this day.

The Freeh Engagement

61. On the same day that Dr. Spanier’s presidency ended, the Board of
Trustees fired Joe Paterno as the head coach of the Penn State football team.

Thousands of Penn State students took to the streets of Penn State’s campus, riots

everishly repoﬁcd the srowing controversy:
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62. The Board of Trustees’s premature and careless firing of Coach Paterno
created a full-scale media and public relations disaster.

63. To address the growing media frenzy — and to vindicate its hasty

Louis Freeh and his law firm Freeh Sporkin & Sullivan (“FSS”) on or about
November 21, 2011, to conduct a purportedly “independent, full, and complete”
investigation of “the alleged failure of Penn State University personnel to respond
to, and report to the appropriate authorities, the sexual abuse of children by former
University football coach Gerald A. Sandusky.”

64. Freeh’s firm was not the only option that Penn State officials
considered. In fact, Penn State officials were concerned that FSS was too small and
aimnlv A
investigation. There was also concern about the close association between FSS and
Pepper Hamilton LLP, a Philadelphia-based law firm, because Pepper Hamilton has
many attorneys that are active and involved in Pennsylvania politics.

65. In the end the Penn State Board of Trustees chose Freeh principally
because of his personal experience with, and ability to navigate, the media and public
relations aspects of such investigations. The fact that Freeh was known as being

very focused on the media narrative was a deciding factor in his retention.
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66. Penn State paid Freeh and FSS over $8.3 million for their work to date

pre-insuring Freeh against the risk of the adverse legal consequences arising from
his defamatory Report, and effectively giving him carte blanche to make statements
he deemed necessary to accomplish the Board of Trustees’s objectives.

67. Freeh and FSS issued the Freeh Report on the Sandusky matter on July
12, 2012, at which time he described his work on the Penn State engagement as
“largely completed.”

Penn State And The Board Of Trustees Ignored Contradictory Information
In Its Possession And Provided By Dr. Spanier About The Commissioned

Renort
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68. Prior to and at the time of publication of the Freeh Report, Penn State

had access to Freeh’s source materials, Spanier’s emails, and his calendar which all

as more at ease with the media side of things and it is clear that this will be his #1 priority, We aiso think the FBI credential




conclusions. Moreover, the Board of Trustees received a leiter from Dr.
Spanier specifically rebutting Freeh’s conclusions, providing additional information
directly contradicting Freeh’s conclusions.

69. Dr. Spanier’s attorn Iso privately submitted to the university’s
general counsel a detailed summary of errors and omissions in the Freeh Report. Dr.

Spanier even requested a meeting with the Board to answer any and all questions

and to set the record straight. His written and oral requests were all ignored.

The Freeh Report Fa lsely Labeled Dr. Spanier A Pedophile-Enabler Based
ad
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Wrongdoing

70. The Freeh Report largely focuses on the response of Penn State officials
— including Dr. Spanier — to two incidents involving Sandusky. The first occurred
in 1998, when Sandusky was employed by The Second Mile and still employed by
Penn State. The second incident occurred in , long after Sandusky had retired
and while Sandusky was employed by The Second Mile.

71.  According to the Freeh Report, on May 4, 1998, a State College woman
called the University Police Department — the police agency for the Penn State
campus — to report that Sandusky had apparently showered with her 11-year-old

son in an athletic facility on the Penn State campus following a workout. The mother

did not allege that Sandusky sexually abused or assaulted her son.
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72.  The Penn State Police Department immediately launched an
investigation, and the detective assigned to the case interviewed the boy that same
day. In addition to the Police Department, the Department of Public Welfare, Centre
e Centre County District Attorney’s
Office also investigated the matter.

73, Over the course of that month, officials would interview the boy
multiple times, question Sandusky, interview a friend of the boy who also had
contact with Sandusky, and actually eavesdrop on two different conversations
Sandusky had with the boy’s mother about the matter.

74.  As the Freeh Report notes, a report by a Counselor for Children and
Youth Services who interviewed the boy found that nothing sexual occurred between

Sandusky and the boy. The Freeh Report quotes from the Counselor’s written
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opinions, which stated that “there seems to be no incident which could be termed as
sexual abuse, nor did there appear to be any sequential pattern of logic and behavior
which is usually consistent with adults who have difficulty with sexual abuse of
children.” The Counselor informed the University Police detective investigating the
case that he too found no evidence o

75.  Soon after, the same detective and a Department of Public Welfare

caseworker named Jerry Lauro interviewed Sandusky. The detective’s notes from
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the interview state that both he and the caseworker agreed after interviewing
Sandusky that no sexual assault had occurred.
76. The last entry in the detective’s report of the investigation, dated June

.

, states: “As a result of the investigation it could not be determined that a
sexual assanlt occurred and SANDUSKY was advised of such. LAURO also
advised that he agreed with Reporting Officer that no sexual assault
occurred. Reporting Officer advised Sandusky not to shower with any
child. Sandusky stated he wouldn’t. CASE CLOSED.”

el

77.  Inlate May or June 1998, the Centre County Distric
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decided it would not press any charges against Sandusky regarding the incident. The
Freeh investigators did not interview anyone involved with that decision, but
acknowledged that it was due to the fact that the rep‘ort issued by the Youth Services
Counselor explicitly found that nothing sexual occurred between Sandusky and the
boy that night. Therefore, there was no crime to prosecute.

78.  Ultimately, the records of the 1998 investigation were even expunged
from Pennsylvania’s statewide “ChildLine” database of suspected child abuse
reports.
Law, the 1998 report regarding Sandusky was classified as “unfounded.”

79.  The Freeh Report also notes that certain Penn State officials were aware

of and kept informed of the investigation. In particular, Athletic Director Tim
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University Police Chief, Tom Harmon, corresponded regarding the course of the
investigation. On June 1, 1998, Harmon emailed Schultz to tell him that the police
d Sandusky that no criminal behavior had been established, and the
investigation was closed.

80. According to the Freeh Report itself, there was no evidence of any
awareness by Dr. Spanier of the 1998 report other than the possibility that he could
have seen two emails between others on which Dr. Spanier was merely copied. The
first, from May 5, 1998, is an emaii from Curley to Schultz,
Sandusky’s name, and simply states, without any additional context or background:

“] have touched base with the coach. Keep us posted. Thanks.” Schultz responds,

that the Public Welfare people will interview the individual Thursday.” The Freeh
Report claims that because Dr. Spanier was copied on this email, Dr. Spanier was
necessarily aware of the 1998 investigation of Sandusky. But there is no evidence
that this email even involved Sandusky at all.

81. Then, on June 9, 1
and wrote that investigators “met with Jerry on Monday and concluded there was no

criminal behavior and the matter was closed as an investigation.... 1 think the

matter has been appropriately investigated and I hope it is behind us.”



82.  Dr. Spanier has no recollection of receiving or reviewing these emails.
But Dr. Spanier’s detailed calendar entries from 1998 show that he was out of the
country on an international trip to the United Kingdom from June 8 to June 16, 1998.
) hy me betfore kBerry-type devices were available, and during
a trip when Dr. Spanier was moving each day from one U.K. university to another.
83. Dr. Spanier was without email access and could not have possibly seen
the June 9 email until he returned to the United States a week later, if he saw it at
all, at which time it would have been among a thousand emails waiting in his inbox.
84. At the time, Dr. Spanier received approximately 25,000 emails a year.
Moreover, Dr. Spanier’s calendar shows he turned right around and left town on the
morning of June 17 for a board meeting in Washington, D.C. for two days.
Furthermore, there is no record of any response to or acknowledgment of receipt of
such emails.
85. TFreeh and FSS had access to and made copies of Dr. Spanier’s

calendars. Freeh was aware that Dr. Spanier had been travelling internationally at

the time the June 9, 1998 email was sent, that he would have had up to a thousand

seen the June 9 email, or may have skimmed past it quickly without an understanding

of who or what the email referred to.
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86.  Accordingly, Freeh and FSS knew it was likely that Dr. Spanier did not
see the June 9, 1998 email, and that even if he did, he was merely copied on an
exchange between others on an email expressly stating that there was “no evidence
of criminal behavior.” Freeh recklessly and intentionally minimized the import of
this information to reinforce his claim that Dr. Spanier knew Sandusky was a
pedophile and chose to conceal that information.

87. Thus, the Freeh Report details an incident in 1998 in which

(1) Sandusky allegedly showered with a boy in a locker room after a workout;

appropriate law enforcement authorities who conducted investigations; (3) trained
professionals concluded that no sexual abuse or impropriety took place, and the
report was determined to be “unfounded,” (4) the authorities declined to prosecute,
finding no crime; and (5) Dr. Spanier was copied on two emails; the first with a
vague reference and no name mentioned, and the second of which was sent while he
was out of the country and may never have seen, and consisted of his subordinate —
who was following the investigation — stating that the matter was appropriately

and that the case was closed.

investigated
88. The Freeh Report then claims that Dr. Spanier’s failure to act on this
information renders him a pedophile enabler. The Report rails that Dr. Spanier “took

no action to limit Sandusky’s access to Penn State facilities or [] any measures to

29



protect children on their campuses.” And despite begrudgingly acknowledging that
Sandusky was effectively cleared of any wrongdoing, the Freeh Report then faults
Dr. Spanier, who was not involved in any way, for not declaring Sandusky a
on the Penn State Campus.

89. Finally, the Freeh Report, after concluding that the 1998 incident had
nothing to do with Sandusky’s retirement, then accuses Dr. Spanier of actively
deciding “to allow Sandusky to retire in 1999, not as a suspected child predator, but
as a valued member of the Penn State football legacy....” This Report, authored by
a former federal prosecutor and judge, makes this accusation with absolutely no
explanation as to how or why Dr. Spanier could have or should have considered
Sandusky a “suspected child predator” in 1999, after law enforcement officials
determined that Sandusky did not abuse the boy or commit any other criminal act.

90. The Freeh Report’s accusations that Dr. Spanier knowingly failed to
protect potential sexual abuse victims, and his faulting of Dr. Spanier for

affirmatively choosing to allow Sandusky to retire in 1999 without labeling him a

“suspected child predator” — even though Freeh and FSS knew no sexual abuse was

investigation — are false.
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The Freeh Report Falsely Accused Dr. Spanier Of Conspiring To Cover Up A
Sexual Assault By Sandusky In 2001

91. The second Sandusky incident that the Freeh Report focuses on is a
2001 incident in which a Penn State football staffer reported witnessing Sandusky
and a male in the showers of an athletic facility on the Penn State campus. Graduate
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10, 2001, that on the evening before, Friday, February 9, 2001, he witnessed
something that made him uncomfortable. More than a decade later McQueary
testified that he entered the locker room of the Lasch Building between 9:00 p.m.
and 9:30 p.m. and heard what he described as “sexual sounds.” McQueary’s story
about what he saw that night has been inconsistent at best.

92.  McQueary says he saw Sandusky — who by that time was employed
solely by The Second Mile — with a boy McQueary believed to be between 10 and
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12 years old. Exact
multiple news outlets have reported, and as transcripts of his court testimony reveal,
McQueary’s stories of what he saw and what he reported varied widely and changed
multiple times.

93. According to McQueary, the first persons he informed immediately

after the alleged incident were his father, John McQueary, and a family friend and

colleague of his father’s, a prominent local physician named Dr. Jonathon Dranov at
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John McQueary’s home. During Sandusky’s criminal triai, Dr. Dranov — who
under Pennsylvania law is required to report suspected child abuse — testified under
oath that McQueary reported that he was upset by the incident, but, when pressed by

Dr. Dranov three times, said that he di

he did not wit
94.  Acting on his father and Dr. Dranov’s suggestions, McQueary then set
up a meeting with head coach Joe Paterno. Both McQueary and Paterno later
testified that McQueary told Paterno nothing specific, but rather advised that he saw
something that he felt was inappropriate.
95.  On Sunday, February 11, Paterno spoke with Athletic Director Curley.

Paterno passed along substantially the same information that was related to him by

McQueary, and Curley later testified that all he understood was that the graduate

later relayed this information to Senior Vice President Schuliz, who had the
impression that Paterno described the events very generally, and speculated that the
incident may have involved “wrestling around” activity. Schultz believed that the
incident was inappropriate, but not a crime.
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96. On February 12, 2001, Schuitz and Curley it

n

briefly with Dr. Spanier
to give him a “heads up” regarding the situation. During his interview with Freeh

and two of his investigators, Dr. Spanier related that this was a short meeting, and

that he was told of Sandusky and a youth “horsing around” in the showers. Dr.
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Spanier specifically asked if that is how the incident was described, and they
answered affirmatively. Dr. Spanier was and is adamant that neither Curley or

Schultz told him that there was anything abusive, criminal or sexual that occurred

between Sandusky and the young male. Curley and Schultz independently have
verified Dr. Spanier’s account. Dr. Spanier was told the shower was after a workout
and the witness was unsure what he saw because it was “indirect and around a
corner.” McQueary’s name was not mentioned. Dr. Spanier was not aware of the
witness, the specific location, or time of day and did not know that The Second Mile
youth might be below high school age.

97.  Dr. Spanier explained to Freeh that he recalled an agreed-upon plan for
Curley to advise Sandusky that (1) he was being directed to not shower again with
youth, and (2) that the head of The Second Mile should be advised of this directive.

98.  On February 27, 2001, Curley emailed Schultz and Dr. Spanier to say
that he believed the best course of action was to meet with Sandusky and tell him
that bringing young men into the campus facilities was inappropriate. Moreover,

Curley would meet with the head of The Second Mile, the youth charity that

99. Dr. Spanier responded to this email to say that this approach was

acceptable and a reasonable way to proceed.
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100. Dr. Spanier told Freeh investigators that several days later, he saw
Curley, who informed him that both the meeting with Sandusky and the meeting
with The Second Mile had occurred and gone well. Dr. Spanier considered this to

have been an appropriate response to what he understood to be mere horseplay

between a Second Mile employee and a youth that took place on campus. Dr.
Spanier considered the matter closed at that time.

101. Dr. Spanier did not hear whatsoever of any other incidents involving
Sandusky, including any allegations of abuse by Sandusky, until Sandusky was
criminaily indicted a decade later.

102. The Freeh Report makes numerous sweeping and defamatory
statements regarding Dr. Spanier and his actions in 2001. The Report charges that
nothing indicates that Dr. Spanier “made any effort to identify the child victim or
determine if he had been harmed.” Freeh accuses Dr. Spanier of “total and consistent
disregard ... for the safety and welfare of Sandusky’s child victims,” and of
“fail[ing] to protect against a child sexual predator harming children for over a
decade.” Freeh further accuses Dr. Spanier of “conceal[ing] Sandusky’s activities

1.
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“exhibit[ing] a striking lack of empathy for Sandusky’s victims by failing to inquire

as to their safety and well-being, especially by not attempting to determine the

identity of the child who Sandusky assaulted in the Lasch Building in 2001.”
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Finally, Freeh claims that by knowingly failing to alert the Board of Trustees of
“child sexual abuse allegations against Sandusky,” Dr. Spanier is guilty of
intentionally “empower[ing] Sandusky to attract potential victims to the campus.”

103. Freeh and his colleagues made these severe, irreparably harmful
allegations despite a lack of any evidence whatsoever that Dr. Spanier was informed
of any allegations of sexual assault or child abuse in 2001 or at any other time. Not
only did Freeh know that his investigation was glaringly deficient and far too
inadequate to allow him a basis to make such accusations, he in fact willfully
ignored, purposefully avoided, or downplayed actual evidence regarding exactly
what Dr. Spanier knew — evidence that uniformly shows that Dr. Spanier was not
informed of any allegation of sexual abuse of any child by Sandusky.

104. The Freeh Report’s claims regarding Dr. Spanier’s knowledge of, and

response to, the 2001 incident are false.

Penn State And The Board Of Trustees Knew That The Freeh Report Would
Scapegoat Dr. Spanier

105. Freeh went to great lengths in his Report and accompanying press
conference to stress that his investigation was comprehensive, complete, and
independent. Freeh and the Penn State Board of Trustees knew that, to serve the
Report’s intended purpose to convince the public that the “bad apples” had been

rooted out, that “closure” had been achieved, and so they could “move on,” it was
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essential that Freeh be viewed as an impartial and disinterested neutral, with no stake
in the ultimate outcome of the investigation.
106. One way Freeh perpetrated this illusion was by trumpeting the claim

that t
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Trustees at the same time. The fact that the Board did not get an advance copy of
the Report was held up as an example of the independence of Freeh’s investigation.

107. Butin fact Freeh had ongoing discussions with selected Board members
regarding the course of the investigation, and its likely outcome, long before the
release of the final Report. Emails between Freeh and Board members show that

Freeh regularly briefed Board members on the status of the investigation.

108. For example, in April 2012 — three months before Freeh even

and two members of the Board openly discussed targeting Dr. Spanier. When a
media outlet reported that Dr. Spanier had been asked to take on a national security
position with a government agency, Freeh and Board members plotted to deny Dr.
Spanier this employment opportunity. Freeh went so far as to refer to the

—~

coordinated targeting of Dr. Spanier by the Board and FSS as “our job.”
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From: Frazier, Kemneth C. <ken_frazierémerck.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 12, 2012 8:31 aM

To: Louis Freeh

Co: Tomalis, Renald; Omar McNeil -- Freeb Group

Subject: Re: Pormer Penn State University president Graham Spanier t¢ begin new job for
Fadsral ggvarn‘mant

Oh brother...
Sent from my iPad

On Apr 1%, 2012, st 8:22 AM, "Louis Freeh® <fresh@freshgroup.com> wrota:

Very interesting--we have done our job notifying the Federal prosecutors ragarding the
latest information.

.
Sent from my iPhone

on Apr 12, 2012, at B:18 AM, "Tomalis, Ronald” < <mailto:rtomaliszfpa.gov
retomalisfpa.gov> wrote:

Seems someone wight not have done their homework...

Former Penn State University presideat Graham Spat ‘begin new job for federal

governmant

Sara Ganim
Patriot Naws

April 1X, 2012

Former Pean State University pvé:;(ﬁent Graham Spanier said he will soon begin working
for the federal government on pkpjeécts related to national sepurity.

P et _-AAId‘ {imY wlama T will

“For the next saver nths, a8 I trassition to my post-presidential plans, I wi
be working on a special ject for the U.S. gowernment relating national security.
This builds on my prior positions working with federal agencies to foster improved
cooperation betweet our:mation’s national security agencies and other entities,”
Spanier said i mail.

was ‘ousted as the university's leader on Nov. %, less than a week after
sistant football coach Jerry Sandusky was charged with child sex abuse.

Spanier

former

109. Through such discussions, which are not revealed in Freeh’s
“independent” Report, Freeh kept his client aware of his intentions, and Freeh’s
client communicated its desires to Freeh. The claim that Freeh released his Report
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to the Board at the same time as it was released to the public was a public relations
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ploy meant to create the illusion that the Board had no involvement at all in Freeh’s
“independent” investigation. In fact, some members of the Board knew the ultimate
accusations the Report would contain before it was released.

110. Indeed, the primary goal of the Freeh investigation was to assign blame
to specific individuals, which is evidenced by the engagement letter memorializing
the agreement between FSS and the “Special Investigations Task Force,” a group
formed by the Board of Trustees to oversee the Freeh investigation.

111. The engagement letter states that the express purposes of Freeh’s
investigation, and the Report that would follow, would be to make findings
concerning: “i) failures that occurred in the reporting process; ii) the cause for those
failures; iii) who had knowledge of the allegations of sexual abuse; and iv) how those
allegations were handled by the Trustees, PSU administrators, coaches, and other
staff.” Thus, Freeh’s investigation from the outset assumed that certain individuals
at Penn State were aware of and concealed evidence of sexual abuse by Sandusky,
and Freeh’s charge was to identify those individuals and explain why they failed to
report suspected child abuse.

112.
under the sole direction of the Task Force in performing the [above-described]

services,” and that Freeh and FSS would perform these services “for the Task

Force’s benefit.”
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113. Freeh also knew that, at the time he was retained, a media narrative was
forming that suggested Penn State officials, particularly Schultz, Curley, and
Paterno, had been aware of allegations regarding Sandusky but had not done enough
intervene. In particular, Schultz and Curley were indicted in connection with the
investigation along with Sandusky, before Freeh was retained.

114. On June 16, 2012, — a month before the Report was published — the
Associated Press published an interview with Penn State University Trustee Keith
Masser, in which Masser defended the Board of Trustees’ purported decision to oust
Dr. Spanier as President of the University. Masser was quoted as saying that Dr.
Spanier was “involved in a cover-up,” and that “top administration officials and top
athletic officials were involved in making the decision to not inform the proper

authorities” of Sandusky’s criminal activities.

115. The Masser interview was published by the Associated Press and
widely circulated by other media outlets nearly three weeks before Freeh

interviewed Dr. Spanier, and nearly a month before the Freeh Report was released.

116. Before Freeh interviewed Dr. Spanier and before he issued his Report,

cover-up of Sandusky’s sexual abuse. Freeh knew that his client expected the Report
to echo the public position of the Board of Trustees. Based on the Board’s directions,

Freeh thus determined before interviewing Dr. Spanier that he was going to issue a
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Report accusing Dr. Spanier of actively participating in a cover-up and actively
deciding to conceal Sandusky’s criminal activities.
117. Freeh also knew that in addition to securing the resignation of Dr.

Spanier, the Board of Trustees had also fir
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ed Paterno, returned Schultz to retirement,
and determined that they would not renew Curley’s contract. Freeh knew that by
accusing Dr. Spanier of being a “wrongdoer” along with Schultz, Curley, and
Paterno, he could release a report that not only justified the Board’s actions, but that
also reinforced then-Vice Chair Masser’s preexisting media narrative. By claiming
that Dr. Spanier joined Schultz, Curley, and Paterno in a “cover up” o
actions, Freeh knew that he could advance his client’s interests by scapegoating a
discrete set of individuals and providing a reason — a supposed cover-up — for why
he Board should be considered substantively blameless by the public.

118. Freeh also knew that the NCAA expected him to target the University’s
highest-level officials like Dr. Spanier and Coach Paterno to justify the NCAA’s
highly dubious claim to have jurisdiction to punish Penn State for Sandusky’s
actions.  Freeh’s Report, which claims that the investigation was entirely

~ + L.-.+
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independent, intentionally omits mention of the fact th h and his investi

held multiple meetings and at least 15 conference calls with NCAA officials, that
NCAA officials provided the blueprint for the investigation, or that NCAA officials

provided Freeh with 32 questions the NCAA expected Freeh to investigate. Nor



does the Report mention that it was understood that Freeh’s “independent”
investigation was expected to substitute for an NCAA investigation, and that the

prospect of a separate, additional NCAA investigation loomed unless the NCAA was

g conclusions
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119. Although the Board of Trustees still has not done any meaningful
examination of the credibility of the Freeh Report, others have; it has been the
subject of numerous critiques, and many of its claims have since been heavily
scrutinized. On June 19, 2014, Hearing Examiner Michael Bangs of the
Pennsylvania State Employees Retirement System issued an opinion recommending
that Sandusky’s state pension be restored. Bangs’s findings and conclusions
addressed the Freeh Report, and specifically rebutted the Report’s claim that “Penn
ate payments to Sandusky for travel, meals, lodging, speaking
engagements, camps and other activities from January 5, 2000 through July 22,
2008.”

120. Hearing Examiner Bangs’s opinion found that “there is no factual
support whatsoever that Penn State made 71 separate payments to [Sandusky]
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of [Sandusky’s] tax records and the records provided by Penn State’s legal counsel
reveal[ed] that there were no more than six payments made to [Sandusky], with

several being reimbursement for travel expenses.” Noting that the Freeh Report was
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“hased on significant hearsay and was mostly ruled inadmissible,” Bangs found that
“[t]he terrifically significant disparity between the findings in the Freeh Report and
the actual truth is disturbing.” He went on to opine that “the use of this remarkably
istic by the Freeh Report, which was then relied upon to form the basis
for a number of its other conclusions, calls into question the accuracy and veracity
of the entire report.”

121. Former Penn State President Rodney Erickson, who was President
during the investigation and when the Report was released, has also stated that
aspects of the Freeh Report are “inaccurate and un
will “never be a complete record in the sense that not everyone who was involved
had an opportunity to or was able to be interviewed.”

122. Indeed, even the current President of Penn State, Eric Barron, has
recently said that “[t]here are significant problems with the Freeh Report,” “Freeh
did not have subpoena power” and thus he did not “interview many of the most
salient individuals,” “Freeh expressed his personal opinions and conclusions about
the motivation of individuals, rather than simply presenting factual information,”
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and finally that

“the limit
of any decision facing Penn State.” (Emphasis in original.) Of course as this First
Amended Complaint details, the Freeh Report has been and continues to be the basis

for many important decisions made by the Trustees and the NCAA.



123. In a commentary on ESPN.com following a settlement between Penn
State and the NCAA regarding the sanctions that followed the release of the Frech
Report, college football reporter Ivan Maisel stated, “The Freeh Report, as it turned
igh school term paper.’
Penn State Brazenly And Repeatedly

Breaches The Separation Agreement By Making False And Negative
Statements About Dr. Spanier

[ ~ 1 yviiz2 L1

124, Penn State has willfully and repeatedly breached the Separation
Agreement and caused further harm and damage to Dr. Spanier.

125. Although the Separation Agreement expressly prohibits Penn State and
its Board of Trustees from making “any negative comments about Dr. Spanier” to
the media or any other members of the public except in limited circumstances, Penn
State and certain members of the Board of Trustees have repeatedly done so in
breach of the Separation Agreement.

126. Penn State Board of Trustees member Keith Masser stated in a June
2012 interview with the Associated Press that Dr. Spanier was “involved in a cover-
up” of Sandusky’s criminal activities. Masser understood that this statement would
be published to the general public when he made it.

127. Penn State did not use reasonable efforts to cause Masser not to make
this negative comment about Dr. Spanier; in fact, upon information and belief, it
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128. Masser’s statement was faise. As set forth above, Dr. Spanier had no
knowledge of Sandusky’s criminal activities prior to Sandusky’s indictment, and

therefore categorically was not involved in any cover up of Sandusky’s criminal
activities.

129. Masser’s statement was a voluntary expression of a negative statement
about Dr. Spanier to the news media. Masser was not required by law to make the
statement, he did not make the statement to comply with any legal obligations, and
he did not make the statement in order to provide truthful information in connection
with any ongoing or forthcoming investigation.

130. Other members of the Penn State administration and the Board of
Trustees have repeatedly and willfully made disparaging comments about Dr.
Spanier in breach of the Separation Agreement.

131. InalJuly 12,2012 press release issued after the publication of the Freeh
Report and after the conclusion of Freeh’s work on behalf of Penn State, Penn State

stated: “Today’s comprehensive report is sad and sobering in that it concludes that

at the moment of truth, people in positions of authority and responsibility did not put

concludes that certain people at the University who were in a position to protect
children or confront the predator failed to do so. There can be no ambiguity about

that.”
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132. These statements referred specifically to Dr. Spanier, as well as Messrs.
Curley, Schultz, and Paterno.

133. Penn State publicly disseminated this press release on its website at
http://progress.psu.edu/resource-library/story/penn-state-issues-statement-on-freeh-

134. The negative statements about Dr. Spanier in this press release were
false. As set forth above, Dr. Spanier had no knowledge of Sandusky’s criminal
activities and thus did not fail to put the welfare of children first, fail to protect
children, or fail to confront a predator.

135. Penn State’s dissemination of this press release was a voluntary
dissemination of negative statements about Dr. Spanier to the news media and the
general public. Penn State was not required by law to issue the press release or the
included negative statements about Dr. Spanier, it did not issue the press release to
comply with any legal obligations, and it did not issue the press release in order to
provide truthful information in connection with any ongoing or forthcoming
investigation.

136. AlsoonJuly 12,2012, Boardof T

4210

e
[
[«

v
"
=
wn
[l
(v}
(4
W
2
:
o
(1)
-
»n
=~
o
3
=
o
=
=
]
-
et
N
(4]
=
=
=

Karen Peetz held a press conference along with Penn State President Rodney

Erickson after the release of the Freeh Report. During that press conference, Penn



State permitted Frazier and Peetz to make numerous negative and untrue statements

about Dr. Spanier, including:

e “Judge Freeh’s Report is both sad and sobering.... Our administrative

.......... cludes that at the moment of
truth, people who are in a position to protect children, and to confront a
predator — including people at the highest levels of responsibility in the
University — specifically, Graham Spanier, Joe Paterno, Tim Curley, and Gary
Schultz, did not put the welfare of children first.” (Kenneth Frazier)

o Inresponse to a question about whether the Board feit misled by Dr. Spanier:
“I would say that we feel concerned and misled in the entire situation. Though
we’re taking responsibility... And so each of the individuals I would say have
let us down significantly.” (Peetz)

e In response to questioning about what Frazier wishes he had asked Spanier:
“I can’t answer that question because I don’t think it was a question of asking
the wrong questions. I think it was a reticence about sharing the information.
It’s not a question of, if we’d asked a magic question, these folks would have
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that way we’ll answer it a different way.”” (Frazier)
e In response to questioning about why the Board didn’t rally behind attempts

to get more information from Dr. Spanier: “I’ll make the point again for



everybody to understand. In retrospect, we wish that we had pressed upon

someone that we had complete trust in. The questions were asked, the answers

were given, they were not complete, thorough, open answers. We could have

in I want to say its not simply a question of us
finding a magic formulation of the question. We asked enough questions that
if someone wanted to share what was going on they could have shared what
was going on. Am I clear?” (Frazier)

e In response to a question about whether the Board had too much trust in
Spanier: “There is a distinction between board oversight and management.
The president of the school has an obligation to make sure that the school is
run in an appropriate way and before this issue arose I think Graham Spanier
was one of the most respected college presidents in the United States. 1 would
say that we were delighted as a Board to have Graham Spanier as our
president. We trusted him based on all external appearances, we believed
what we were being told was accurate. In retrospect, we were not told what
was being accurate [sic].” (Frazier)

137.
to make these negative comments about Dr. Spanier. In fact, on information and

belief, Penn State organized the July 12, 2012 press conference with full knowledge

that Frazier and Peetz would make negative comments about Dr. Spanier. Penn

47



State’s President was present for and participated in the press conference, and made
no effort to cause Frazier and Peetz not to make these negative statements about Dr.

Spanier.

2

138. Frazier and Peetz’s statements about Dr.

a SIS it

panier during the July 12,
2012 press conference were false. As set forth above, Dr. Spanier had no knowledge
of Sandusky’s criminal activities, and thus did not fail to protect children, fail to
confront a predator, or fail to put the welfare of children first.

139. Moreover, Dr. Spanier did not mislead the Board in any way, he was
not reticent about providing information regarding Sandusky to th
not conceal information he possessed about Sandusky from the Board, and he did
not provide inaccurate information to the Board.

140. TIn fact, within 24 hours of his own testimony before the Grand Jury
investigating Sandusky in April 2011, Dr. Spanier and then-Penn State General
Counsel Cynthia Baldwin set up a conference call with Steve Garban, the Chair of

the Board of Trustees, to brief Garban on the matter.

141. Following that discussion and an inquiry from another trustee, Dr.
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Jury’s inquiry into Sandusky’s activities. Ms. Baldwin presented this briefing before
an executive session of the Board on May 12, 2011, and all members of the Board

were given the opportunity to ask questions.



142, Dr. Spanier kept the Chair of the Board informed of the limited
information Dr. Spanier learned from Cynthia Baldwin regarding the Sandusky
investigation throughout the following months, and Dr. Spanier briefed individual

members of the Board ove

dinners at the time of the May, July, and September 2011
Board meetings. Dr. Spanier informed Board members of all the information he
learned from Baldwin and did not withhold any relevant information.

143. Upon hearing from Baldwin the leaked information that Sandusky,
Curley, and Schultz were to be criminally charged, Dr. Spanier informed the Chair
of the Board within an hour of learning this information. From that point forward
until his separation from Penn State, Dr. Spanier was involved in constant
discussions with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board regarding the information
available respecting Sandusky, and how the University should respond to the
unfolding situation.

144. Frazier and Peetz’s negative comments about Dr. Spanier during the

July 12, 2012 press conference were made voluntarily. Neither Penn State nor its

Board members were required by law to make these negative statements about Dr.

made in order to provide truthful information in connection with any ongoing or

forthcoming investigation.



145. Frazier and Peetz held another press conference on the following day,
July 13, 2012, again to discuss the already-released Freeh Report. At that press

conference, Frazier said of Dr. Spanier: “I think the Report shows that there was a

that some people, in a particular instance, because they wanted to avoid bad
publicity, might have concealed the criminal acts of Jerry Sandusky.”

146. Frazier’s negative comments at the July 13, 2012 press conference were
intended to refer to Dr. Spanier, and were understood by the public to refer to Dr.
Spanier.

147. Penn State did not use reasonable efforts to cause Frazier not to make
these negative comments about Dr. Spanier. In fact, on information and belief, Penn
State organized the July 13, 2012 press conference with full knowledge that Frazier
and Peetz would make negative comments about Dr. Spanier.

148. As set forth above, Frazier’s statements about Dr. Spanier during the
July 13, 2012 press conference were false. Dr. Spanier had no knowledge of
Sandusky’s criminal activities, he did not conceal any criminal activities by
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not do so in order to avoid
149. Frazier’s negative comments about Dr. Spanier during the July 13,2012

press conference were made voluntarily. Frazier was not required by law to make

these negative statements about Dr. Spanier, they were not made to comply with any
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legal obligations, and they were not made in order to provide truthful information in
connection with any ongoing or forthcoming investigation.

150. During a pre-planned, in-person, group interview with a New York
Times reporter in New Jersey on January 18, 2012, a group of thirteen members of
the Board of Trustees made the following statements about Dr. Spanier, all of which
breach the Separation Agreement:

e “The trustees, over three hours, described how they had felt blindsided by
Spanier’s failure to keep them informed of the nature and scope of the
Pennsylvania attorney general’s investigation of Sandusky, along with the
investigation of university officials.”

e “The trustees on [a Saturday, November 5, 2011 conference call] who had
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officials felt a distinct lack of urgency by the university. Many were irked
that Spanier had released a statement in full support of Curley and Schultz,
who were indicted for perjury. The trustees were floored, they said, that
Spanier did not seem to recognize the severity of the situation.”

e “The trustees quickly realized that Spanier had chosen not to keep them
informed.”

e “The trustees said this week that they were disappointed that Spanier, who



board on the nature of the questions by the grand jury about the 2002 episode.
‘He should have told us a lot more,’ [Trustee] Lubert said. ‘He should have

let us know much more of the background. He was able to legally share his

testimony and I think that he had an obligation to do that with the board so we

could get more engaged with the problem.””

o “Part of being a leader at this level is to be a risk manager and to think through
what might happen,’ the trustee Karen B. Peetz, an executive with Bank of
New York Mellon, said of Spanier.”

e “The Sunday meeting ended with the trustees eager to issue a news release,
expressing a commitment to a full internal investigation and sympathy for any
victims. In the interviews this week, they accused Spanier of having altered
the release.”

151. On information and belief, Penn State was aware of this planned group
interview before it occurred. Penn State did not undertake reasonable efforts to
cause the thirteen Trustees not to make these negative and untrue comments about
Dr. Spanier to the media.

152. The Tru
Times are demonstrably false. As set forth above, Dr. Spanier had no knowledge of

Sandusky’s criminal activities.
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153. As set forth above, Dr. Spanier did not fail to keep the Board informed
of information regarding Sandusky’s criminal activities, the Attorney General’s
investigation into Sandusky’s criminal activities, or the Grand Jury investigation into
Sandusky’s criminal activities. Dr. Spanier shared all of the limited information he
had regarding these matters with the Board in a forthcoming and timely manner.

154. Moreover, Dr. Spanier did not fail to recognize the severity of the
situation regarding Sandusky’s indictment nor did he act with a lack of urgency in
response to the unfolding situation.

155. Dr. Spanier was never informed, officially or ur
of the Attorney General that charges would be forthcoming against any University
employees. In fact, the University’s then-General Counsel repeatedly assured Dr.
Spanier that “there was nothing there” and that there was little likelihood that the
University would be implicated or affected by the allegations regarding Sandusky.
Although he was aware that Curley, Schultz, and Paterno had been called to testify
before the Grand Jury investigating Sandusky, Dr. Spanier was not even made aware
of the other subpoenas that had been issued to Penn State or to himself personally.

156.
and Schultz would be charged criminally, Dr. Spanier felt and acted with an immense
sense of urgency. He immediately informed the Chair of the Board, and met daily

or near-daily with the Chair of the Board in the days leading up to the issuance of
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the Grand Jury presentment. He took part in a series of emergency meetings that
followed.

157. In fact, after the release of the Grand Jury presentment on November 5,

2011, the irman ¢
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, h ard felt that a meeting of the Board could wait until
Monday, November 7. Dr. Spanier insisted that emergency Board meetings be held
on Saturday, November 5, and Sunday, November 6, in order to quickly address the
unfolding crisis.

158. Dr. Spanier was also under orders from John Surma, Vice Chair of the
Board, not to make any public statements or hold a press conference, because the
Board would be handling the crisis management rather than University officials.

159. The negative accusation that Dr. Spanier altered a University press
release regarding the Sandusky indictment is also false. The substance of the press
release in question was discussed in a full session of the Board of Trustees on
Sunday, November 6, 2011. Following the board meeting, in conjunction with the
Board Chair and the University’s Office of Public Information, Dr. Spanier assisted
in finalizing the press release that emanated from the board meeting. Dr. Spanier in
fact sent the final draft of the draft o
Trustees for review prior to its issuance, and did not substantively alter the planned

release in any way before it was disseminated on Monday, November 7, 2011.
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160. The negative comments about Dr. Spanier made by these Board
members in January 2012 were made voluntarily to the news media. The statements

were not made to comply with any legal requirement or obligation, and they were

ongoing or forthcoming investigations.

161. Each of the foregoing comments by Penn State and its Board members
regarding Dr. Spanier are negative and false.

162. During his tenure as President of Penn State, Dr. Spanier never received
any information that Sandusky had abused a child, and Dr. Spanier was never
provided information that would lead him to conclude that Sandusky had ever
committed a criminal act directed at a child until after Sandusky’s criminal
indictment. Dr. Spanier did not seek to, nor did he, conceal or cover up any
information regarding Sandusky’s criminal activities from the Board of Trustees or
anyone else.

Dr. Spanier Has Suffered Significant Reputational, Emotional, And Economic
Harm As A Result Of Penn State’s And the Board Members’ Statements

163. Penn State’s and its Board Members’ disparaging statements regarding
Dr. Spanier have caused him severe damage.

164. Dr. Spanier has suffered severe reputational harm as a result of these

negative statements. The false, malicious and disparaging statements regarding
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Spanier impugn his well-earned reputation as an educator, university administrator,
civic leader, advocate for child and family welfare, and national security expert —
and they undermine public confidence in his competence, ethics, and abilities in

these areas. Dr. Spanier has spent a lifetime building his reputation, and Penn State’s

and the Board Members’ statements falsely and wrongfully tarnished his strong
reputation in these and other areas.

165. These false, malicious, and disparaging statements regarding Dr.
Spanier have caused him to endure humiliation and verbal and written personal
attacks.

166. Moreover, using the Freeh Report as justification, the University has
also taken a broad range of punitive actions against Dr. Spanier, in blatant breach of
the Separation Agreement.

167. Penn State, with the acquiescence of the Board of Trustees, initiated

proceedings to revoke Dr. Spanier’s tenure.

168. Penn State prohibited Dr. Spanier from representing the University in

any capacity.
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170. Penn State revoked Dr. Spanier’s assignment of an office at the

University.
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171. Penn State revoked any and all of Dr. Spanier’s access to the University
and its systems, including cutting him off from the University network and email.

172. Penn State confiscated Dr. Spanier’s computer, laptop, iPad and
printer.

173. On July 13, 2012 — the day after the Freeh Report was released — an
individual at Penn State arranged to have a “request no contact” code placed on Dr.
Spanier’s file in the Penn State Alumni Association database, barring Dr. Spanier
from receiving communications and mailings from the Alumni Association.

i74. Because of the Penn State’s actions, Dr. Spanier has been the subject o
excoriation by reporters, activists, columnists, editorial writers, and bloggers.

175. The disparaging statements regarding Dr. Spanier have caused him
economic harm. Because of the narrative spoken and written by Freeh and Penn
State, Dr. Spanier has lost a number of rewarding employment opportunities,
including being forced to resign from a position on the board of directors of a

corporation that paid Dr. Spanier handsomely.

176. The disparaging statements have caused Dr. Spanier to suffer



Penn State Breaches The Separation Agreement By Failing To Provide
Required Administrative Support

177. Penn State has also breached the Separation Agreement by failing to
allow Dr. Spanier to teach any courses and by failing to provide administrative
support commensurate with that received by other tenured faculty members and
former presidents.

178. In preparation for the 2012 fall semester posting of spring semester
courses, Dr. Spanier developed a new course. In May 2012 he identified an office
location and prepared the paperwork necessary to hire a secretary. President
Erickson and Acting Provost Pangborn did not respond to Dr. Spanier’s emails about
these matters and did not assign Dr. Spanier an office location or allow him to hire
a secretary. When the spring course list was posted, Dr. Spanier’s name was not on
it. On November 2, 2012, Provost Pangborn sent Dr. Spanier a letter notifying Dr.
Spanier that he was being placed on an indefinite suspension from any and all duties.

179. On November 14, 2012, Penn State sent individuals to Dr. Spanier’s
home to confiscate and remove his desktop computer, laptop, iPad, and all associated
electronics and means of accessing the Penn State network. IT support personnel
were directed to have no contract with Dr. Spanier.

180. Despite the fact that the Separation Agreement expressly requires that

Dr. Spanier be provided with the same administrative support as other faculty
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members, as well as an office on campus and a staff assistant, Penn State has
breached the Separation Agreement by knowingly and intentionally failing to so

provide.

181. In Augu
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longer be permitted in the Recreation Hall Building because his ID card had been
deactivated. Following inquiry by his attorney, he was told that there was a
misunderstanding and that his ID was indeed active. When Dr. Spanier then tried to
use his ID for the routine task of checking out a library book, and the ID was rejected,
his attorney was advised that Dr. Spanier should seek the assistance of the Associate
Vice President for Finance and Business to clear up the matter. Three months after

that discussion, Dr. Spanier was advised that the issue had not been resolved and

hat the matter was still on the desk of the General Counsel.
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Penn State Breaches The Separation Agreement By Repeatedly Refusing To
Indemnify Dr. Spanier For Legal Fees And Related Costs
182. Penn State has willfully and repeatedly breached the Separation
Agreement and caused further harm and damage to Dr. Spanier by failing to
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indemnify Dr. Spanicr for than $782,997.43 in Covered Costs.

183. Paragraph 4(f) of the Separation Agreement requires Penn State to

“reimburse Dr. Spanier for the attorneys’ fees and expenses he has incurred in

connection with matters relating to the grand jury presentment and his termination
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from the position of the President of the University,” while Paragraph 6 of the
Separation Agreement further provides that “The University agrees to indemnify Dr.
Spanier in accordance with the terms of Section J of the Employment Agreement

and with the by-laws

iNd YV

of the University.”

184. Section J of the Employment Agreement states: “J. Indemnification.
The University shall indemnify Dr. Spanier and hold him harmless against legal fees,
expenses, judgments and other financial amounts incurred while serving in his
capacity as President of the University to the extent permitted by law. Dr. Spanier
shall continue to be indemnified subsequent to termination o
President with respect to acts or omissions occurring while he was serving as
President. The terms of Section J shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.”

185. In spite of Dr. Spanier’s repeated demands that Penn State indemnify
him for Covered Costs, Penn State has refused to do so, in breach of the Separation
Agreement.

186. In November of 2011, Dr. Spanier hired Hiltzik Strategies, LLC
(“Hiltzik Strategies”) to manage the legal and public relations damage to Dr.
Spanier’s reputation resulti
termination from the position of University President, alleged acts or omissions that

occurred while Dr. Spanier was serving as President, and damaging statements made

by Penn State representatives.
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187. Although Penn State has indemnified Dr. Spanier for several invoices
provided by Hiltzik Strategies, it has refused to pay many of Hiltzik Strategies
invoices that it has received from Dr. Spanier’s attorneys.

188. InNovember 2011, Dr. Spanier’s counsel at Vaira & Riley PC provided
Penn State with a November 22, 2011 invoice totaling $12,500.00. Vaira & Riley
PC demanded that Penn State indemnify Dr. Spanier for the fees and expenses.

189. In December 2011, Penn State refused to pay the November 22, 2011
invoice for Covered Costs, in violation of the Separation Agreement.

190. In accordance with the Separation Agreement, Penn State indemnified
Dr. Spanier for invoices issued by Hiltzik Strategies for payment of Covered Costs
incurred in February, March, April, and May of 2012.

191, After indemnifyin or Covered Costs from Hiltzik
Strategies during the spring of 2012, Penn State abruptly changed course and refused
to pay three invoices Hiltzik Strategies issued in the summer of 2012 totaling
$81,900.00 of Covered Costs: (1) June 30, 2012 invoice totaling $3,500.00; (2) July
30, 2012 invoice totaling $16,700.00; (3) August 31, 2012 invoice totaling
$61,700.00.

192. Between November 2011 and August 2012, Penn State failed to
indemnify Dr. Spanier for a total of $94,400.00 in Covered Costs owed to Hiltzik

Strategies.
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193. In August of 2013, University General Counsel Stephen Dunham
informed Dr. Spanier’s counsel that Penn State would not indemnify Dr. Spanier for
invoices issued by Hiltzik Strategies. Dunham specifically refused to pay for the
expenses related to the work of Schnader Harrison Segal & Lewis LLP (“Schnader
Harrison™) attorney Tim Lewis, who acted on Dr. Spanier’s behalf to present a
formal critique of the Freeh Report.

194. In January 2015, Stephanie Kao, counsel for Penn State, called Dr.
Spanier’s attorney, Elizabeth Ainslie. Kao notified Ainslie that Penn State would
discontinue indemnifying Dr. Spanier for expenses incurred for services by Hiltzik
Strategies and that Penn State would not issue reimbursement or payments for any
future invoices from Hiltzik Strategies. Penn State has thus not paid any of the
invoices issued after February 2015. Penn State has failed to pay $70,000.00 for
services rendered by Hiltzik Strategies after Kao’s January 2015 conversation with
Ainslie.

195. To date, Penn State has refused Dr. Spanier’s indemnification demands
and failed to pay $164,400.00 in past-due invoices issued by Hiltzik Strategies.

196. A copy of the Hiltzik Strategies invoice summary is attac
First Amended Complaint as Exhibit F.

197. Penn State also refused to indemnify Dr. Spanier for two invoices

totaling $48,189.93 that he submitted for Covered Costs owed to the law firm
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Schnader Harrison: (1) March 15, 2013 invoice totaling $35,092.93 and (2)
September 10, 2013 invoice totaling $13,097.00; he submitted for Covered Costs
owed to the law firm Schnader Harrison.

198. In March and September of 2013, Dr. Spanier’s attorneys at Schnader
Harrison sent the two invoices directly to Penn State’s counsel, Stephen Dunham,
for payment. Penn State then submitted the invoices to its insurance carrier, National
Union Fire Insurance Company (“National Union”) for coverage under Penn State’s
D&O Policy.

199. The invoices requested payment for legal work surrounding Dr. Spanier

separation from the University. Specifically: (1) post-employment contract matters

which were contemplated in the Separation Agreement and which Penn State had

being leaked to impugn Dr. Spanier’s reputation that Dr. Spanier filed in 2012 at the
request of Penn State’s outside counsel, Michael Mustokoff; (3) a King’s Bench
Petition filed with the Pennsylvania Supreme Court in 2013; and (4) a petition in
federal court to intervene in the wrongful prosecution by the Attorney General.
200. On February 26, 2014, Peabody & Arno
Union, notified Dr. Spanier that the Schnader Harrison invoices were not covered

by Penn State’s D&O Policy.
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201. After National Union denied coverage, Penn State has failed to
indemnify Dr. Spanier for these Covered Costs, in violation of the Separation
Agreement.

202. OnF
LLP requested that Penn State indemnify Dr. Spanier for $576,188.75 in legal fees
and expenses in Covered Costs. Dr. Spanier sent two invoices to Penn State for
payment: (1) January 28, 2016 invoice totaling $5,781.25 and (2) September 2, 2015
invoice totaling $570,407.50.

203. A copy of the February 3, 2016 letter is attached to this First Amended
Complaint as Exhibit G.

204. Dr. Spanier incurred these costs during an appellate challenge of lower
1gs that allowed Cynthia Baldwin, former general counsel for Penn State,
to testify against Dr. Spanier before the grand jury. The Superior Court of
Pennsylvania ruled that Baldwin improperly testified about communications the two
had that were protected by attorney-client privilege. The successful appeal resulted
in the dismissal of perjury, obstruction of justice, and conspiracy charges against Dr.
Spanier.

205. On February 11, 2016, counsel for National Union notified Dr. Spanier

that Penn State was unwilling to indemnify him for the Covered Costs because the

Sullivan & Cromwell invoices were not covered by Penn State’s insurance policy.
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206. In response, Dr. Spanier sent a February 22, 2016 letter to Keith
Masser, Chair of the Board of Trustees at Penn State, demanding that Penn State
indemnify him for the Covered Costs reflected on the Sullivan & Cromwell invoices.
hat Penn State’s “insurance coverage is irrelevant given the
University’s contractual obligation to pay for [the Sullivan & Cromwell] charges.”
He explained that National Union’s denial of coverage did not relieve Penn State’s
obligation to indemnify him.

207. In spite of Dr. Spanier’s demand, in March of 2016 Penn State doubled
down on its refusal to reimburse Dr. Spanier or pay the outstanding and overdue
Covered Costs.

208. Penn State has refused Dr. Spanier’s demand for payment, and the past

209. The Separation Agreement affords Dr. Spanier broad and mandatory
indemnification from Penn State.

210. Penn State has materially breached the Separation Agreement and
refused to indemnify Dr. Spanier for past-due Covered Costs.

211. As set forth above, Penn State’s refusal to indemnify Dr. Spanier is a

material breach of the Separation Agreement, and Dr. Spanier has been injured by

Penn State’s breach.
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COUNT I: BREACH OF CONTRACT FOR NEGATIVE AND UNTRUE
COMMENTS BY PENN STATE AND BOARD MEMBERS KENNETH
FRAZIER AND KAREN PEETZ

212. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 209 of this
First Amended Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

213. The Separation Agreement between Dr. Spanier and Penn State is a
valid and enforceable contract.

214. A copy of the Separation Agreement is attached to this First Amended
Complaint as Exhibit A.

T 2 Qaianswntinem Ao
The Separation Agreement p

215.
negative comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, to his professional colleagues,
or to any other members of the public except in limited circumstances.

216. The Separation Agreement requires Penn State to use reasonable efforts
to cause the members of the Board of Trustees not to make any negative comments
about Dr. Spanier to the media, to his professional colleagues, or to any other
members of the public.

217. Penn State has materially breached the Separation Agreement.

218. Penn State breached the Separation Agreement by holding Penn State-
organized and sponsored press conferences on July 12, 2012, and July 13, 2012, in

which President Erickson, Trustee Kenneth Frazier, and Trustee Karen Peetz made

numerous negative and untrue comments about Dr. Spanier, including:
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e “Judge Freeh’s Report is both sad and sobering.... Our administrative
leadership also failed. Judge Freeh’s Report concludes that the moment of

truth, people who are in a position to protect children, and to confront a

University — specifically, Graham Spanier, Joe Paterno, Tim Curley, and Gary
Schultz, did not put the welfare of children first.” (Kenneth Frazier)

e Inresponse to a question about whether the Board felt misled by Dr. Spanier:
“I would say that we feel concerned and misled in the entire situation. Though
we’re taking responsibility... And so each of the individuals I would say have
let us down significantly.” (Peetz)

e In response to questioning about what Frazier wishes he had asked Spanier:

the wrong questions. I think it was a reticence about sharing the information.
It’s not a question of, if we’d asked a magic question, these folks would have
said, ‘Ok, we’re not going to conceal what’s going on, now that you asked it

99y

that way we’ll answer it a different way.”” (Frazier)
¢ In response to questioning about why the Board didn’t rally behind attempts

to get more information from Dr. Spanier: “I’ll make the point again for

everybody to understand. In retrospect, we wish that we had pressed upon



were given, they were not complete, thorough, open answers. We could have
asked more questions but again I want to say it’s not simply a question of us
finding a magic formulation of the question. We asked enough questions that
if someone wanted to share what was going on they could have shared what
was going on. Am [ clear?” (Frazier)

In response to a question about whether the Board had too much trust in
Spanier, Frazier said: “There is a distinction between board oversight and
management. The president of the school has an obligation to make sure that
the school is run in an appropriate way and before this issue arose I think
Graham Spanier was one of the most respected college presidents in the
United States. 1 would say that we were delighted as a Board to have Graham
Spanier as our president. We trusted him based on all external appearances,
we believed what we were being told was accurate. In retrospect, we were
not told what was being accurate [sic].”

Frazier further said that, “I think the Report shows that there was a breakdown
or gap in terms of some of our oversight as a Board. I think it also says that
some people, in a particular instance,
publicity, might have concealed the criminal acts of Jerry Sandusky.”

219. Penn State breached the Separation Agreement by publishing a July 12,

2012 press release on its website in which Penn State stated “Today’s comprehensive
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report is sad and sobering in that it concludes that at the moment of truth, people in
positions of authority and responsibility did not put the welfare of children first,”
and that “Judge Freeh’s report concludes that certain people at the University who
were in a position to protect children or confront the predator failed to do so. There
can be no ambiguity about that.” A copy of this press release is attached to this First
Amended Complaint as Exhibit B.

220. These negative statements are demonstrably false. Dr. Spanier was
unaware of Sandusky’s criminal activities until after Sandusky was indicted, and
thus did not fail to confront Sandusky or fail to protect children. Dr. Spani
concealed sexual child abuse by Sandusky. At no time did he take actions to conceal
Sandusky’s deviant and criminal conduct from the Board.

221. These negative comments about Dr. Spanier were made voluntarily.
Neither Penn State nor its Board members were required by law to make these
negative statements about Dr. Spanier, they were not made to comply with any legal

obligations, and they were not made in order to provide truthful information in

connection with any ongoing or forthcoming investigation.

and untrue statements to the media and general public, despite the Separation

Agreement’s prohibition on making such statements.
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223. Penn State failed to use reasonable efforts to cause Frazier and Peetz
not to make negative and untrue comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, his
professional colleagues, and the public.

224, Dr. Sp rforme
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Agreement.

225. Dr. Spanier has been damaged by Penn State’s contractual breach by,
among other things, having his reputation tarnished, by having negative and untrue
statements about him widely published and disseminated, by loss of employment
opportunities, by having to hire a professional media relations firm to attempt to
repair the damage to his reputation, and by having to incur the substantial burden
and expense of bringing and pursuing this action in order to enforce his rights under
the Separation Agreement.

COUNT II: BREACH OF CONTRACT FOR NEGATIVE AND UNTRUE
COMMENTS OF TRUSTEE KEITH MASSER

226. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 223 of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

227. The Separation Agreement between Dr. Spanier and Penn State is a
valid and enforceable contract.

228. A copy of the Separation Agreement is attached to this First Amended

Complaint as Exhibit A.



229. The Separation Agreement prohibits Penn State from making any
negative and untrue comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, to his professional
colleagues, or to any other members of the public.

230. The Separation Agreement requires Penn State to use reasonable efforts
to cause the members of the Board of Trustees not to make any negative comments
about Dr. Spanier to the media, to his professional colleagues, or to any other
members of the public.

231. Penn State has materially breached the Separation Agreement.

232. Penn St
reasonable efforts to cause Trustee Keith Masser not to make negative and untrue
comments about Dr. Spanier to the media.

233. Trustee Masser stated in a June 2012 interview with the Assoctated
Press that Dr. Spanier was “involved in a cover-up” of Sandusky’s criminal
activities. A copy of this interview is attached to this First Amended Complaint as
Exhibit C.

234. Penn State undertook no efforts to cause Trustee Masser not to make

e media, despite the
Separation Agreement’s prohibition on making such statements.

235. This negative statement is demonstrably false and aimed to damage Dr.

Spanier’s reputation. Dr. Spanier was unaware of Sandusky’s misconduct until after
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Sandusky was indicted, and at no time was Dr. Spanier invoived in any cover-up of
Sandusky’s criminal activities.

236. Masser made this statement to the media voluntarity. He was not
required by law to make the statement, he did not make the statement to comply with
legal obligations, and he did not make the statement for the purpose of providing
truthful information in connection with any ongoing or forthcoming mvestigations.

237. Dr. Spanier has performed all of his obligations under the Separation
Agreement.

238. Dr. Spanier has been damaged by Penn State’s contractual breach by,
among other things, having his reputation tarnished, by having Trustee Masser’s
statement widely published and disseminated in the media, by loss of employment
opportunities, by having to hire a professional media relations firm to attempt to
repair the damage to his reputation, and by having to incur the substantial burden

and expense of bringing and pursuing this action in order to enforce his rights under

the Separation Agreement.

COUNT III: BREACH OF CONTRACT FOR NEGATIVE AND UNTRUE
COMMENTS OF TRUSTEES TO THE NEW YORK TIMES

239. Plamtiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 236 of this
First Amended Complaint as if fully set forth herein.
240. The Separation Agreement between Dr. Spanier and Penn State is a

valid and enforceable contract.



241. A copy of the Separation Agreement is attached to this First Amended
Complaint as Exhibit A.

242, The Separation Agreement prohibits Penn State from making any
negative and untrue comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, to his professional
colleagues, or to any other members of the public.

243, The Separation Agreement requires Penn State to use reasonable efforts
to cause the members of the Board of Trustees not to make any negative and untrue

comments about Dr. Spanier to the media, to his professional colleagues, or to any

244. Penn State has materially breached the Separation Agreement.
245. Penn State breached the Separation Agreement by failing to use
reasonable efforts to cause thirteen members of the Board of Trustees not to meet

with the New York Times in January 2012 and make numerous negative and untrue

attached to this First Amended Complaint as Exhibit D.

246. During a pre-planned, in-person, group interview with a New York

statements about Dr. Spanier, all of which breach the Separation Agreement:

o “The trustees, over three hours, described how they had felt blindsided by

Spanier’s failure to keep them informed of the nature and scope of the
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Pennsylvania attorney general’s investigation of Sandusky, along with the
investigation of university officials.”

“The trustees on [a Saturday, November 5, 2011 conference call] who had
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officials felt a distinct lack of urgency by the university. Many were irked
that Spanier had released a statement in full support of Curley and Schultz,
who were indicted for perjury. The trustees were floored, they said, that
Spanier did not seem to recognize the severity of the situation.”

“The trustees quickly realized that Spanier had chosen not to keep them
informed.”

“The trustees said this week that they were disappointed that Spanier, who

jury testimony, did not brief the
board on the nature of the questions by the grand jury about the 2002 episode.
‘He should have told us a lot more,” [Trustee] Lubert said. ‘He should have
let us know much more of the background. He was able to legally share his
testimony and I think that he had an obligation to do that with the board so we
could get more engaged with the problem.

“Part of being a leader at this level is to be a risk manager and to think through

what might happen,’ the trustee Karen B. Pectz, an executive with Bank of
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e “The Sunday meeting ended with the trustees eager to issue a news release,
expressing a commitment to a full internal investigation and sympathy for any

victims. In the interviews this week, they accused Spanier of having altered

the releage ”
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247. On information and belief, Penn State was aware of this planned group
interview before it occurred. Penn State undertook no efforts to cause the Trustees
not to make these negative and untrue comments about Dr. Spanier to the media,
despite the Separation Agreement’s prohibition on making such statements.

248. These negative statements are demonstrably faise. Dr. Spanier had no
knowledge of Sandusky’s criminal activities. He did not fail to recognize the
severity of the situation regarding Sandusky’s indictment, he did not choose not to
keep the Board informed regarding Sandusky’s indictment or Sandusky’s prior
criminal activities, he did not fail to keep the Board informed of information
regarding Sandusky’s indictment and Sandusky’s prior criminal activities, and he
did not alter a press release regarding the Sandusky indictment.

249. The negative comments about Dr. Spanier made by these Board

were not made to comply with any legal requirement or obligation, and they were
not made for the purpose of providing truthful information in connection with any

ongoing or forthcoming investigations.



250. Dr. Spanier has performed all of his obligations under the Separation
Agreement.

251. Dr. Spanier has been damaged by Penn State’s contractual breach by,

mon

among other things
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ing the Trustee’s
statements widely published and disseminated in the media, by loss of employment
opportunities, by having to hire a professional media relations firm to attempt to
repair the damage to his reputation, and by having to incur the substantial burden
and expense of bringing and pursuing this action in order to enforce his rights under

the Separation Agreement.

COUNT 1V: BREACH OF CONTRACT FOR FAILURE TO PROVIDE
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

252. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 249 of this
First Amended Complaint as if fully set forth herein.
253. The Separation Agreement between Dr. Spanier and Penn State is a

valid and enforceable contract.

Complaint as Exhibit A.

255. The Separation Agreement requires Penn State to provide Dr. Spanier
computer access, IT support, administrative support commensurate with that
provided to other tenured faculty members and University Professors, an office, and

a staff assistant.



256. Penn State has materially breached the Separation Agreement.

257. Penn State has not provided Dr. Spanier with computer access or IT
support. Penn State in fact confiscated from Dr. Spanier his University-issued
ff his ability to access the
Penn State network.

258. Penn State has not provided Dr. Spanier with administrative support
commensurate with that provided to other faculty members and former presidents.
Penn State in fact has not provided Dr. Spanier with any administrative support.

259. Penn State has not provided Dr. Spanier with an office or a staff
assistant. Penn State has knowingly and intentionally ignored Dr. Spanier’s requests
for an assigned office space and a staff assistant.

260. Dr. Spanier has performed all of his obligations under the Separation
Agreement.

261. Dr. Spanier has been damaged by Penn State’s contractual breach by,
among other things, having no access to the University network, by having no ability
to teach courses or otherwise work as a tenured University Professor as required by
the Separation Agreement, and by having to incur the sub
of bringing and pursuing this action in order to enforce his rights under the

Separation Agreement.
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COUNT V: BREACH OF CONTRACT FOR FAILURE TO PAY LEGAL
FEES AND RELATED EXPENSES

First Amended Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

263. The Separation Agreement between Dr. Spanier and Penn State is a
valid and enforceable contract.

264. A copy of the Separation Agreement is attached to this First Amended
Complaint as Exhibit A.

265. The Secparation Agreement requires Penn State to reimburse Dr.
Spanier for all attorneys’ fees and all expenses he incurs in connection with “matters
jury presentment and his termination from the position of
President of the University.” The Separation Agreement further provides that Penn
State will continue to indemnify Dr. Spanier in accordance with the terms of Section
J of the 2010 Employment Agreement.

266. A copy of the 2010 Employment Agreement is attached to this First
Amended Complaint as Exhibit E.

267. Section J of the 2010 Employment Agreement provides:
The University shall indemnify Dr. Spanier and hold him harmless
against legal fees, expenses, judgments, and other financial amounts

incurred while serving in his capacity as President of the University. Dr.

Spanier shall continue to be indemnified subsequent to termination of



employment as President with respect to acts or omissions occurring
while he was serving as President.
268. Penn State has failed to pay approximately $782,997.43 in Covered
269. Shortly after receiving each invoice, Dr. Spanier and his agents
requested that: (1) Penn State remit payment for covered costs; or (2) reimburse Dr.
Spanier’s payment for Covered Costs.
270. Unless stated otherwise, each invoice for Covered Costs became due
upon receipt. Every invoice that was not paid upon receipt is past due.
271. Penn State refused to pay four invoices totaling $94,400.00 of Covered
Costs billed from Hiltzik Strategies: (1) November 22, 2011 invoice totaling
$12,500.00; (2) June 30, 2012 invoice totaling $3,500.00; (3) July 31, 2012 invoice
totaling $16,700.00; and (4) August 31, 2012 invoice totaling $61,700.00. Each
invoice became past-due one month after it was issued.
272. Dr. Spanier provided the four invoices shortly after the date of each

invoice, and Penn State refused to pay the Covered Costs on or before each invoice

273. Penn State has refused to pay any Covered Costs reflected in invoices
from Hiltzik Strategies from March 2015 through the present. During this time

period, Hiltzik has issued twenty invoices on the last day of each month, and each



invoice became due one month after it was issued. The invoices issued between
March 2015 and October 2016 total $70,000.00. This amount remains unpaid and
is past-due.

274. Penn State refused to indemnify Dr. Spanier for $164,400.00 in
Covered Costs to Hiltzik Strategies between November of 2011 and the present, in
breach of the Separation Agreement.

275. Penn State’s refusal to pay invoices issued by Hiltzik Strategies for

Covered Costs constitutes a material breach of the Separation Agreement.

] Cunnniar far tus, mvunira
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276. Penn State also refused to indemnify
totaling $48,189.93 that he submitted for Covered Costs owed to the law firm
Schnader Harrison: (1) March 15, 2013 invoice totaling $35,092.93 and (2)
September 10, 2013 invoice totaling $13,097.00.

277. Penn State’s refusal to pay invoices issued by Schnader Harrison for
Covered Costs constitutes a material breach of the Separation Agreement.

278. Penn State has refused to pay three invoices totaling $576,188.75 in

legal fees and expenses to the law firm Sullivan & Cromwell LLP for Covered Costs.

woriax

279. Penn State’s refusal to pay invoices issued by Sullivan & Cromwell
constitutes a material breach of the Separation Agreement.
280. Penn State has refused Dr. Spanier’s demand for payment, and the past

due invoices remain unpaid.



281. The Separation Agreement afford Dr. Spanier broad and mandatory
indemnification from Penn State.

282. Penn State has materially breached the Separation Agreement and

refused to indemnify Dr. Spanier for Covered Costs.

283. To date, Penn State refuses to indemnify Dr. Spanier for $782,997.43
in Covered Costs.

284. Dr. Spanier has been damaged by Penn State’s contractual breach by,
among other things, having to expend funds to defend himself from the false,
negative, and damaging statements made by Defendant, having to expend funds to
initiate and prosecute the lawsuit to obtain his own emails that Penn State provided
to Freeh but refused to provide to Dr. Spanier, having to advance payment for
expenses and fees that Penn State was contractually obligated to reimburse, and by
having to incur the substantial burden and expense of bringing and pursuing this

action in order to enforce his rights under the Separation Agreement.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

285. Plaintiff prays that this Court provide the following relief:

(a) Damages for Penn State’s breach of contract;

(b)  Costs and fees incurred in the prosecution of this action;
and
alLiug

(c)  Further relief as this Court shall deem just and proper.



VERIFICATION

I verify that the statements made in the foregoing First Amended Complaint are true and
correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief. I understand that any false

statements herein are made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904, relating to unsworn

falsification to authorities
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286. Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so tr1

/
Dated: Novembe/ ; , 2016
/

s

ﬁ hofnas A.Cl (admltted pro hac vice)

(Va 39299)
Elizabeth ¥/ Locke (admitted pro hac vice)
(Va717

Andrew C. Phillips (admitted pro hac vice)
( VA 8LER(N)

CLARE LOCKE LLP

902 Prince Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314
Telephone: (202) 628-7400
tom(@clarelocke.com
libby@clarelocke.com
andy@clarelocke.com

Kathleen Yurchak
(Pal.D. 555948)
STEINBACHER, GOODALL & YURCHAK

328 South Atherton Street
Qtate (Callace D A 1AR01
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Telephone: (814) 237-4100
Fax: (814) 237-1497

Attorneys for Plaintiff Graham B. Spanier
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served on

the below counsel of record on November 14, 2016.

David S. Gaines (Pa. 308932)
Miller, Kistler & Campbell

720 South Atherton Street, Suite 201
State College, PA 16801-4669
(814) 234-1500

(814) 234-1549 (fax)

Robert C. Heim (Pa. 15758)
Michael L. Kichline (Pa. 62293)
William T. McEnroe (Pa. 308821)
DECHERT LLP

Cira Centre

Philadelphia, PA 19104-2808
(215) 994-4000

(215) 994-2222 (fax)

Steinbacher, Goodall &Wk

Dated: November 14, 2016 / %
By: .

KatMleen V/¥urchak
(Pa. I.D. 48)
328 S Atherton Street

State Coliege, PA 16801
(814)237-4100
(814) 237-1497 (fax)




-
© |

e

© |

=



Execution counterpart

CONFIDENTIAL SEPARATION AGREEMENT

This Confidential Separation Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by
and between The Pennsylvania State University (“University") and Graham B. Spanier,
Ph.D. ("Dr. Spanier’). The University and Dr. Spanier, each intending to be legally bound

and in consideration of the following mutual promises and covenants, do agree as follows.

1. Effective November 9, 2011, Dr. Spanier was terminated from the
position of President of the University without cause pursuant to Section H.2 of his
Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2010 (“Employment Agreement”). By virtue of Dr.
Spanier's termination from the position of President, it is understood and agreed that he
likewise relinquishes his position on the University’s Board of Trustees, the presidency
of The Corporation for Penn State (the “Corporation”), all ex-officio positions held with
respect to any board of any subsidiary of the Corporation and aii other ex-officio
positions tied to the Presidency of the University, except that in the case of Dr.

hip on the National Security Higher Education Advisory Board, Dr.

Spanier shall resign as soon as practicable under the policies and practices of such

Advisory Board.

2. By virtue of Dr. Spanier's termination from the position of President
of the University, it is also understood and agreed that except as otherwise provided
below, Dr. Spanier's Employment Agreement was terminated as of November 9, 2011.
Dr. Spanier may remain employed by the University, however, b
the faculty in the Department of Human Development and Family Studies of the College
of Health and Human Development, with the titles of President Emeritus, University
Professor and Professor of Human Development and Family Studies, Sociology,

Demography, and Family and Community Medicine.

EXHIBIT A
Page 1 0f 8



3. Pursuant to the Employment Agreement and in return for Dr. Spanier

agreeing to the terms of this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall be provided with the

following:

(@)  Alump sum payment equal to Dr. Spanier's current base
salary for a period of eighteen (18) months, with payment to be
made on December 15, 2011. This payment is subject to tax
withholdings required by federal, state and local laws. Dr. Spanier
shall also be eligible to continue to participate in all of the employee
benefit plans of the University applicable to senior executives for a
period of 18 months from November 8, 2011 pursuant to Section
E(1) of the Employment Agreement, and he shall be eligible to
continue to receive for a period of 18 months from November 9,
2011 the supplemental life insurance, supplemental health
insurance, and disability coverage as provided in Sections E(2),
E(3) and E(4) respectively of the Employment Agreement. The
University will also comply with the provisions in Section E.2 of the
Employment Agreement regarding life insurance at the conclusion
of the Term of the Employment Agreement (other than the provision
with respect to continued escalation of the death benefit) and in
Section E.3 regarding health insurance coverage at the conclusion
of his presidency.

(b)  The Retirement Plan Equivalency payment (referenced in
Section C(5) of the Employment Agreement) in the gross amount of
$1,248,204 .60 payable in two instaliments: (1) an amount equal to
the applicable federal, state and local tax withholding amount due
on the Retirement Pian Equivalency gross payment amount shall
be payable to Dr. Spanier on December 15, 2011, and remitted to
the applicable taxing authorities; and (2) the remainder shali be
paid to Dr. Spanier on June 30, 2017. No taxes shall be withheld
from the payment of the second installment and the second
installment shall not be reported as taxable income, since the first
installment is intended to satisfy the entire tax liability with respect

to the Retirement Plan Equivalency payment.

(c) For as long as Dr. Spanier remains employed by the
University, the University will continue to contribute, at its normal
Alternate Retirement Plan contribution rate (currently 8.29%), as it
does for all employees under such Pian, to the purchase of an

mrmems st s mmmbra ot 1andbi; bl v £ At
annuity contract within the meaning of Section 403(b) of the Internal

Revenue Code. In addition, the University shall make the 2011
payment to Dr. Spanier as provided in Section C.4(b) of the
Employment Agreement, at the time such payments have been
made in the past, with the amount of such payment prorated to
cover the period from January 1, 2011 to November 9, 2011.

(d)  Pursuant to Section E(6) of the Empioyment Agreement, a

paid one-year post-presidency transition period during which Dr.
Spanier will be paid his current annual salary of $700,000 (subject
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to tax withholdings required by law) and receive the benefits
described in Sections E(1) through E(4) of the Employment
Agreement. Dr. Spanier agrees to provide substantial services to
the University as required by Section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue

Code during such period.

(e)  Following completion of the one-year post-presidency
transition period, Dr. Spanier may continue as a tenured member of
the faculty, with a salary of $600,000 annually for a period of five
years, with all provisions of Section E(6) of the Employment
Agreement being applicable. Thereafter, Dr. Spanier's employment
and compensation as a tenured faculty member shall be governed
by the University's policies, rules and regulations applicable to
other tenured members of the faculty of the University.

(H With respect to the contents of Schreyer House, as has been
the case with prior presidents, it is agreed that all furniture
purchased by the University in the public spaces of the nouse
belong to the University and will remain the property of the
University. Furniture and contents purchased by the Spanier family

will remain the property of the Spanier family. Furniture and
contents purchased by the University for the private family spaces
of Schreyer House may, at the discretion of the Spanier family, be
purchased by the Spanier family at a fair market value to be
determined according to existing property inventory unit procedures
under the purview of the Corporate Controller. Payment for such
any such furniture or contents will be made within 30 days of
departure from the residence.

N, i ' HYH
Dr. Spanier waiving the 90
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(a)  Dr. Spanier shall be paid a lump sum payment equal to ninety (90)
days pay at the rate of his current annual salary of $700,000 (subject to
tax withholdings required by law), in lieu of the ninety days’ notice required
by Section H.2 of his Employment Agreement, with payment to be made
on December 15, 2011.

(b)  Dr. Spanier and his family may remain in the President's Residence
for up to seventy-five (75) days from November 8, 2011. The University
shall reimburse Dr. Spanier for the reasonable expenses of moving his
personal property from the President's Residence as provided in Section F

of the Employment Agreement.
(¢)  Dr. Spanier may retain the automobile provided under Section C(9)

gf t1he Employment Agreement for up to sixty (60) days from November 9.
011.
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(d) During the post-Presidency transition period referred to in Section
E.5 of the Employment Agreement, the University will provide Dr. Spanier
with administrative support to assist him with his responsibilities, including

computer access and IT support, in the manner previously provided to
mact nracidente nf the | lni\'le[SI;t\,l' in :I{‘idsﬂgn to all sunport [efe['!’ed to in the
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last paragraph of Section E.6 of the Employment Agreement. Following
the post-Presidency transition, the University will provide Dr. Spanier with
administrative support commensurate with that provided with other
tenured faculty members and University Professors, and will continue to

provide the administrative support referred to in the last paragraph of
Section E.B of the Employment Agreement.

(e)  Dr. Spanier shall be reimbursed promptly for reasonable travel and
business expenses incurred up to November 9, 2011 and not submitted

prior to the execution of this Agreement as provided in Section E.7 of the
Employment Agreement.

F7% Hom ol sl o oAbl mmbiama 110 v
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University shall reimburse Dr. Spanier for the attorneys’ fees and
expenses he has incurred in connection with matters relating to the grand
jury presentment and his termination from the position of President of the

University.

5. The parties shall cooperate in obtaining an opinion of mutually

meaning
situated university officials in similar circumstances. The parties agree to negotiate in
good faith to modify the terms of this Agreement if necessary to obtain such opinion.

The University shail pay the fees and costs of such compensation counsel.

6.  The University agrees to indemnify Dr. Spanier in accordance with

the terms of Section J of the Employment Agreement and with the by-laws of the

7. Dr. Spanier, on behalf of himself, his heirs, representatives, estates,
successors and assigns, does hereby irrevocably and unconditionally remise, release
and forever discharge The Pennsylvania State University, its predecessors, parents,

subsidiaries, affiliates, constituent organizations, benefits plans, and any successoi
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thereto, and their past, present and future trustees, officers, directors, administrators,
agents, attorneys, insurance carriers, consultants or employees, as well as the heirs,
successors and assigns of any such persons or such entities (severally and collectively
called “Releasees”), jointly and individually, from any and all claims, known and
unknown, that Dr. Spanier has or may have against any of the Releasees for any acts,
omissions, practices or events up to and including the effective date of this Agreement
and the continuing effects thereof, it being the intention of Dr. Spanier to eff

general release of all such claims. This release includes any and all claims under any

including, but not limited to, any claims under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, Title Vil of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, the Age Discrimination
in Employment Act, the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, the Americans With
Disabilities Act, and other federal, state, and local statutes, ordinances, executive
orders, regulations and other laws prohibiting discrimination in employment or benefits,
and federal, state or local law claims of any kind whatsoever arising out of or in any way
related to Dr. Spanier's employment as President of the University and his termination

from the position of President of the University.

8.  The University, on behalf of itself and the Board of Trustees, does
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally remise, release and forever discharge Dr.
Spanier from any and all claims, known and unknown, that the University has or may
have against Dr. Spanier for any acts, omissions, practices or events up to and
including the effective date of this Agreement and the continuing effects thereof, to the
extent such acts or omissions relate to his position as President of the University, it

being the intention of the University to effect a general release of all such claims.
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9. itis expressly understood and agreed that by entering into this

Agreement, the University in no way admits that it has treated Dr. Spanier untawfully or

wrongfully in any way.

10. Dr. Spanier agrees, and shall use reasonable efforts to cause his
attorneys to agree that, except as required by law or to comply with legal obligations, they
shall keep the terms and conditions of this Agreement COMPLETELY CONFIDENTIAL
and they will not discuss, disclose, or reveal those terms and conditions, directly or
indirectly, to the media or to any person, corporation, or other entity, other than to Dr.
Spanier's attorneys, spouse, accountants and financial advisors or to any government

agency or entity with jurisdiction over matters relating to this Agreement.

11. Dr. Spanier acknowledges that the University may be required to make
the terms and conditions of this Agreement public in accordance with its policies and
procedures or as required by applicable law or regulatory authority. If the University
makes the terms and conditions of this Agreement public in accordance with this
paragraph, Dr. Spanier will be relieved of his obligations in paragraph 10, but only to the

extent of the provisions of this Agreement that are made public by the University.

12. Dr. Spanier will not make any negative comments to the media, to his
professional colleagues or to any other members of the public regarding the University, its
Board of Trustees or any member of the Board of Trustees, unless required by law or to
comply with legal obligations and/or to provide truthful information in connection with

ongoing or forthcoming investigations.

13. The University will not, and will use reasonable efforts to cause the
members of the Board of Trustees not to, make any negative comments about Dr.

Spanier to the media, to their professional colleagues or to any other members of the
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public, unless required by law or to comply with lega! obligations and/or to provide truthful

information in connection with ongoing or forthcoming investigations.

14. inthe event of any breach of any provision of this Agreement, the
prevailing party in any litigation over such breach shall be entitled, in addition to al! relief
otherwise available under law, to an award of reasonable counsel fees and expenses

incurred in investigating and litigating such breach.

15. Dr. Spanier acknowledges that he has been given the opportunity to

time, and that he has been advised to consult with his attorneys about this Agreement
prior to executing it. Dr. Spanier further acknowledges that he has had a full and fair
opportunity to consult with his attorneys, that he has carefully read and fully
understands all of the provisions of this Agreement, and that he is voluntarily executing
and entering into this Agreement, intending to be legally bound by it. If Dr. Spanier
executes this Agreement in less than 21 days, he acknowledges that he has thereby

waived his right to the full 21-day period.

18. For a period of seven calendar days following Dr. Spanier's
execution of this Agreement, he may revoke it by delivery of a written notice of
revocation to the office of Cynthia A. Baldwin, Esq., Vice President and General
Counsel, The Pennsylvania State University, 108 Old Main, University Park, PA 16802.
This Agreement shall not become effective or enforceable before the seven-day

revocation period has expired.

17. The parties hereto further understand and agree that the terms and
conditions of this Agreement constitute the full and complete understandings and

arrangements of the parties with respect to the terms of Dr. Spanier’s termination from
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the position of President of the University and that there are no agreements, covenants,

promises or arrangements other than those set forth herein with respect to that subject.

18. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

19. If any of the provisions of this Agreement are declared or determined
by any court to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions and

portions of this Agreement shall be unaffected thereby and shall remain in full force to

Frn
[

a

20. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one

and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the aforesaid parties, having read this
Confidential Separation Agreement and intending to be legally bound hereby, have
read, signed, sealed and delivered it, voluntarily, without coercion and with knowledge

of the nature and consequences thereof.

THE PENNSYLVANIA STATE
UNIVERSITY
By: M\ ,%‘GM«/\
Steve A. Garban Graham B. Sbanier

President, Board of Trustees

////f/;o //

Date !/ / Date
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Penn State issues statement on Freeh
Report

July 12,2012, SCRANTON, PA - Today’s comprehensive
report is sad and sobering in that it concludes that at the
moment of truth, people in positions of authority and
responsibility did not put the welfare of children first. The
Board of Trustees, as the group that has paramount
accountability for overseeing and ensuring the proper
functioning and governance of the University, accepts full
responsibility for the failures that occurred. The Board, in
cooperation with the Administration, will take every action
to ensure that events like these never happen again in our

university community.

The focus of all of our actions going forward will be on driving a culture of honesty, integrity,
responsible leadership and accountability at all levels and within all units of our institution.

Judge Freeh's report concludes that certain people at the University who were in a position to
protect children or confront the predator failed to do so. There can be no ambiguity about
that. The defenseless victims and their families are at the forefront of our thoughts and
prayers. We are deeply sorry for the failure to protect these vulnerable young boys from the
pain and anguish they suffered. At the same time, we are filled with admiration for the bravery
shown by the young men and their families who came forward to ensure that jistice will be
done.

While today’s issuance of the Freeh Report provides some level of clarity for our community, it
does nat undo the pain that the victims of Jerry Sandusky have experienced, and continue to
experience. We will continue to offer counseling to Mr. Sandusky's victims, listen to them and
take affirmative steps to address the harm they have suffered.

Beyond our campuses, the University is undertaking a number of actions to help build greater
awareness of the societal issue of child sexual abuse. We are partnering with the Pennsylvania
Coalition Against Rape {PCAR} and have also created the Center for the Protection of Children
at the Hershey Medical Center. Penn State University intends to be a constructive leader in
preventing, reporting and responding ta such abuse. This is a problem that plagues our
nation, and we have a special duty tc increase awareness, prevention and treatment of child
sexual abuse.

.edu/resource-library/story/penn-state-issues-statement-on-freeh-report

board of trustees

child abuse prevention

president erickson

freeh report
bot

Subscribe for Updates

Sign up for email newsletter updates on

significant issues affecting the Penn
State community related to the Progress
website.

For more information, please contact
the Office of Strategic Communications:

Media Contact: David La Torre
1-717-608-6337
progress@psu.edu

Office of Strategic Communications
The Pennsylvania State University
309 Old Main

University Park, PA 16802

Visit the archived Onenness website
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Judge Freeh’s investigation was intended to identify where failures occurred and what changes
should be made for the future. As the Freeh report noted, the University has already taken
steps to begin addressing some of the shortcomings.

The Board of Trustees acknowledges that it failed to create an environment of accountability
and transparency and did not have optimal reporting procedures or committee structures.
Beginning in March 2011 and continuing until the publication of the Grand Jury presentment in
November 2011, the Board failed to make proper inquiry of President Spanier and others
regarding the Sandusky matter. As a result, the Board was unprepared to deal with the events
that occurred in November 2011.

The Board has begun taking a more active oversight role and has implemented specific
oversight committees, focused on Risk, Audit, Legal, Compliance, Academic Excellence,
Governance and Human Resources. Furthermaore, the Board is committed to greater
transparency and communications with the entire University community.

Additionally, the University Administration has strengthened policies and programs involving
minors, child abuse and mandated reporter training; ensuring a process for prompt reporting
of abuse and sexual misconduct; hiring a new, full-time Clery Compliance Coordinator and
providing Clery Act training for employees; and establishing a position of, and commencing a
national search for, a director of University Compliance. Further information can be found
here: www.progress.psu.adu.

In the weeks ahead, the University will carefully review and consider each of the report’s
recommendations. Tomorrow at its regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Trustees will
consider a series of immediate next steps. President Rodney Erickson has appointed three
members of his senior leadership team to coordinate and implement operational changes
suggested by the Freeh Report.

As the Freeh Report notes Penn State “is an outstanding institution, nationally renowned for its
excellence in academics and research.” Nothing in this report detracts from the many
significant accomplishments of our faculty, staff, students and alumni. We also remain proud
of the accomplishments of Penn State's student athletes over many years, and we reaffirm the
fundamental premise that academic excellence and athletic achievement are wholly consistent
and complementary goals.

With the release of the Freeh Report we are beginning to correct our failures, promote healing
and build a stronger tomorrow for Penn State. We are continuing the process of addressing

twe can heal and move forward,

Topics: freeh, freeh report, the freeh repaort, judge freeh, special investigations task force, pcar,
board of trustees, bot, center for the protection of children, clery compliance coordinator

Additional Sites

http://progress.psu.edu/resource-library/story/penn-~state-issues-statement-on-freeh-report

3/15/15, 1:43 PM
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Sixteen named distinguished
professors at Penn State

Penn State Hershey physician to
serve as Pennsylvania's physician
general

January trustee meeting is now
ontine

Board approves proposed
acquisition of St. joseph Regional
Health Network

Eight to receive distinguished
alumni awards in 2015
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Testimony at Sandusky trial shows missed chances
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Penn State Roard Recounts Decision to Fire Paterna - NYTimes.cam 3/16/15, 1:49 PM

COLLEGE FOOTBALL

Penn State’s Trustees Recount Painful Decision to Fire
Paterno

By PETE THAMEL and MARK VIERA  JAN. 18, 2012

It was growing late on the night of Nov. 9, 2011. John P. Surma, the chief executive
of U.S. Steel and the vice chairman of Penn State University’s board of trustees, sat
at a rectangular table at the Penn Stater Hotel. Gov. Tom Corbett of Pennsylvania
was on the speaker phone. Other trustees were present, many emotionally spent.

The board, scrambling to address the child sexual abuse scandal involving the
university and its football program, had already decided to remove Graham B.
Spanier as president. Then, many of those present recalled this week, the tension
in the room mounted. Joe Paterno’s future was next up. Surma announced that an
agreement appeared to have been reached to fire Paterno, too — the trustees
having determined that he had failed to take adequate action when he was told that
one of his longtime assistants had been seen molesting a 10-year-old boy in
Paterno’s football facility.

Surma, those present recalled, surveyed the other trustees — there are 32 —
for their opinions and emotions before asking one last question: “Does anyone
have any objections? If you have an objection, we're open to it.”

No one in the room spoke. There was silence from the phone speakers.
Paterno’s 46-year tenure as head coach of one of the country’s storied college
football programs was over, and the gravity of the action began to sink in.

“It was hard for us to want to get to the point where we were going to say that,”
said Ira M. Lubert, a board member who works in private equity. “I was laying in
bed that night shaking. And I couldn’t sleep — thinking: We just terminated Joe
Paterno.”

http:/ fwww.nytimes.com/2012/01/19/sports/ncaafootball/penn-state~trustees-recall-decision-to-fire-paterno.htmi?_r=0 Page 1 of 10
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The 100 or so hours beginning with the arrest of Jerry Sandusky, a former
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Wednesday night’s meeting of the trustees. By then, the campus was aflame with
discontent. Penn State students and faculty, its alumni and its growing number of
outside critics had been roiled by anger and confusion, embarrassment and sorrow.

Reporters had 1nundated State College. It was, plainly put, the most trying time in

On Wednesday, in a conference room in New Jersey, a group of 13 trustees
spoke to The New York Times in detail about that week — a somewhat frantic,
certainly exhausting week that led to the firings of Paterno and Spanier and to the
disturbances on campus that those dismissals set off.
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which included calls from alumni who started a group known as Penn Staters for
Responsible Stewardship in an effort to replace the current board members. The
trustees, over three hours, described how they had felt blindsided by Spanier’s
failure to keep them informed of the nature and scope of the Pennsylvama attorney

officials.
Spanier, two other senior university administrators and Paterno had all given
testimony before a criminal grand jury by late spring of 2011. They had been

questioned extensively about what they had done after learning of a report in 2002

at aal u I~rhad +and A a i — L

that said Sandusky had molested a young boy in showers of the football

s of the footb
building. According to the trustees, Spanier never informed them of any of that
before Sandusky’s arrest on Nov. 5.

The trustees also laid out what they said were three key reasons for firing
Paterno: his failure to do more when told about the suspected sexual assault in

after Sandusky’s arrest; and what they determined to be his inability to effectively

continue coaching in the face of continuing questions surrounding the program.
The trustees, who had not spoken publicly in any detail since the firings, also

disclosed that, while havmg fired Paterno, they were still honoring the terms of his
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been told of Sandusky’s suspected assault. Some of the trustees were also upset
that Paterno was seen leading “We are Penn State” cheers on his lawn with
students and fans who had gathered after Sandusky’s arrest, which some board
members viewed as insensitive.

stated in his grand jury testimony, was enough for some to decide that he had not
acted appropriately in simply informing the university’s athletic director, Tim
Curley, and another top official, Gary Schultz. Both of them have been charged
with failure to report to the authorities what they knew about the incident and for

“To me, it wasn’t about guilt or innocence in a legal sense,” the trustee
Kenneth C. Frazier, the chief executive at Merck, said of Paterno’s decision not to
go to police. “It was about these norms of society that I'm talking about: that every
adult has a respon51b111ty for every other child in our community. And that we have
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responsibility for ensuring that we can take every effort that’s within our power not
only to prevent further harm to that child, but to every other child.”

Saturday, Nov. 5

At 5 p.m., the trustees met via telephone for an emergency session.
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against Sandusky and the two senior university officials felt a distinct lack of
urgency by the university. Many were irked that Spanier had released a statement
in full support of Curley and Schultz, who were indicted for perjury. The trustees
were floored, they said, that Spanier did not seem to recognize the severity of the

“We deal with crisis every day at this university,” they recalled Spanier saying.
“We won’t have a problem with this.”

The trustees, meanwhile, were shocked by the charges — and caught
completely unaware. There had been reports in The Patriot News of Harrisburg
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a trustee and the president of a real estate development company. “We found out
about it when the rest of the world found out about it.”
Lubert, for his part, had just dropped off his son and daughter-in-law after

brunch when he got a call from his son while driving home to Philadelphia. His son
told him that Curley an

“That’s impossible,” Lubert said. “If they were, I would know that.”

His son responded: “Do yourself a favor and when you get home turn on the
television. It doesn’t matter what channel.”

Anne Riley, another trustee, said she would always remember being at the
opera, sitting in seat 15, Row B, of the balcony, when she hea
trustee Keith E. Masser was playing golf in Naples, Fla., and found out by peeking
at his phone. Frazier heard about the severity of the situation while sitting in his
car outside a burger place.

The trustees quickly realized that Spanier had chosen not to keep them

During a board meeting last May, after Spanier had testified before the grand
jury, the board received a short briefing — the trustees estimated it was 5 to 10
minutes — on Sandusky’s being under investigation by a grand jury.

The briefing, which took place during a “seminar” session not open to the
public, included an explanation of what a grand jury investigation was by the
university counsel Cynthia Baldwin. (Baldwin had sat in on the grand jury
testimony but was not legally allowed to speak to the trustees about the contents of
the testimony, according to Lanny J. Davis, external counsel and crisis
management adviser to the office of the Penn State president and to the board of
trustees. )

The trustees this week said that they were disappointed that Spanier, who was
legally allowed to speak about his grand jury testimony, did not brief the board on
the nature of the questions by the grand jury about the 2002 episode.

“He should have told us a lot more,” Lubert said. “He should have let us know

http:/ fwww nytimes com /2012 /01/19/sports/ncaafoothall /nenn-state-trustees-recall-decision-ta-fire~paterna html?_r=0 Page 4 of 10
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The mention of the grand jury investigation by Baldwin and Spanier was so
brief that Surma barely remembered it. No one asked questions.

“Part of being a leader at that level is to be a risk manager and to think through
what might happen,” the trustee Karen B. Peetz, an executive with Bank of New
~ antAd Fannu;r
U l’ SAiIll UL L)P 1110k .

Spanier has not been charged in the perjury case. He told the grand jury he
was never told that Sandusky’s encounter with the young boy in the showers in

2002 involved sexual assault.

ITA ligédnnrmand havd s lA +
He listened, but would not respond, when told how the trustees had described his
actions.

Paul Suhey, a former football captain for Paterno and an orthopedic surgeon
in the State College area, was the only trustee on campus for the 5 p.m. conference
call as others dialed in from around the country.
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Steve Garban, the board’s chairman, admitted to not reading the grand jury’s
charges until late Sunday night, more than 24 hours after it went public. After he
did, he felt that Paterno, his former coach, lifelong friend and occasional drinking
buddy, needed to be let go.

But the trustees conc
the university administrators would handle it.

Peetz, the bank executive, said she came to a simple conclusion: “We are up
against the challenge of our lives.”

Sunday, Nov. 6

College, having arrived by private plane or car. When they met, they realized that
Spanier and others had already arranged for lawyers from two firms to be present,
as well as representatives from a public relations firm. They were meant to brief
the trustees on how to handle the crisis.
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victims.
In the interviews this week, they accused Spanier of having altered the release.
It was made to appear as a joint release from Spamer and the board, and diluted

“I got up the next morning to read the press release online and it really didn’t
reflect what we had come to the conclusion of as a board,” Lubert said. “I
remember reading that, and I was sick. I then knew we had a serious problem.”

Surma added: “The big difference that I remember was that we had very

explicit comments about the independent investigation and what it would
investigate and its freedom of access. What came out was something much
different than that.”

Garban said he soon informed Spanier that he could no longer speak for the
university on the issue.

“I have to take some
Graham could get us through this or help get us through this. And he participated
in writing the press release, and after it came out, I knew it wasn’t right.”

Garban read the grand jury report after the meeting and regretted not reading
it sooner: “It was like, ‘Oh my God, Steve, where’ve you been?’ It floored me.”

Tuesday, Nov. 8

On Tuesday, Surma and Garban met to have breakfast at the Nittany Lion Inn
around 7:30 a.m. Sandusky’s arrest had been headline news for four days. Paterno
was supposed to meet with reporters for his weekly conversation about the team’s
next game.
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and he subsequently had a 33-year career at the university. But several members of
the board were upset with his leadership during the days after Sandusky’s arrest.
Garban had remained loyal to Spanier for too long, some felt; other trustees

A Fmrotaoe imdood wrara Alamammng far a2 chanaao I" ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ A3l 4
11IC LI UDSLECS, HIUCCU, WTLC UldllUl 1 18 iUl da lldllBC dl Ud.ll ICLUBIIILCU 111
http:/ /www.nvtimes.com/2012/01/19/sparts/ncaafootball fpenn-state-trustees-recall-decision-to-fire-paterna.html?_r=0 Page 6 of 10

EXHIBITD



rd Recounts Decision to Fire Paterng - NYTimes.com 3/16/15, 1:49 PM

na
Carg ReLount

o
w2
jo
=
=
o
8
7
w
®
0,
o
=
e
=
o
=3
@]
oo}
@

discontent among the board members. So Garban an

leadership before Surma could even bring it up.

“John, let’s not go there,” Garban recalled telling Surma. “You need to take
this over. And let’s agree — take it over.”

Stepping into the power vacuum, Surma joined Garban at Old Main, the

ersonnel

iiax

us, to meet with university p ,

including Spanier. Surma said that it became clear to him that Spanier was no
longer in control of the university. Surma said Spanier seemed to realize as much
himself.

“Do I have support of the board?” Spanier asked Garban.

The trustees promptly canceled Paterno’s weekly news conference. It was
evidence of how much the board’s confidence in Paterno had eroded.

Then Surma said he started making preparations for what might come next
with Spanier. He handed out orders to the university’s counsel and the public

Perhaps the most important moment came when Surma met with Rodney A.
Erickson, the university’s executive vice president and provost. Erickson explained
to Surma that he did not know anything about the allegations until shortly before
Sandusky was arrested. Surma believed Erickson was sincere.
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future, might be asked to take over the presidency.
“If it comes to it, we may need you,” Surma told Erickson.
Erickson simply replied, “O.K.”
Spanier’s inquiry about the board’s support set the agenda for what would be a

tees at 7 p.m. The call la
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chaired the discussion and told the trustees that Erickson could be an alternative to
Spanier.
That Erickson, who was widely respected by the trustees for his broad

+tha + ¥ A
the trustees confidence about firing Spanier. But the trustees still had to make a
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final decision on Paterno. The seriousness of the task was not lost on the board
members, and it was decided that the board would meet in person the next night.

“I’d like everyone to come together tomorrow and look people in the eyes,”
Lubert recalled saying during the call.

Wednesday, Nov. 9

The trustees glumly descended on State College for what they knew would be a
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feeling as if she were an executioner going to the guillotine. Stephanie Nolan
Deviney, a trustee and a partner at the law firm Fox Rothschild in Exton, Pa.,
remembered going to the bedroom of her 7-year-old to kiss him before she left for
State College.

“
I thO ug 1t of th

recalled this week. “And I thought about what they must feel when they kiss their
sons good night.”

The trustees gathered in a conference room at the Penn Stater at 7 p.m. In a
rare occurrence, the governor joined the meeting by telephone for its duration.

oken up by the clamor of tool-

However,
belted workers crawling around under the table trying to fix the telephone line.
“Governor,” Surma asked every few minutes, “are you still with us?”

The trustees first discussed Spanier’s status. The trustees said that they sensed
there was a consensus about Spanier’s future as the president. Earlier, Spanier had
told Spanier that the board felt it needed to deal with the matter 1tself So, instead,
the trustees paged through Spanier’s contract, and then decided to fire him. They
named Erickson the interim president.

Then the trustees dec1ded the fate of Paterno, who had come to Penn State as a
d

university, to which he donated more than $4 million. The 13 trustees interviewed
Wednesday said that Paterno did not reach out to them before the Nov. g board
meeting, and some said that it would not have mattered, because they did not
believe that he could say anything to save his job.

AT Al QAllave Datarnna’o 1o '
Wick Sollers, Paterno’s lawyer, issued a statement Wednesday in response to
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: A
it immediately and fully to his superiors a

believed these officials, who had the authority and responsibility to conduct
investigations, would act appropriately. He did what he thought was right with the
information he had at the time. Blaming Joe Paterno for the failure of
administration officials and the board to properly investigate Jerry Sandusky is

On that Wednesday night in November, though, the only thing left for the
board to do was to figure out how to carry out the firing. Could representatives
safely show up at Paterno’s home amid the media frenzy? Was it realistic to expect

Paterno, then 84, to meet with the trustees? The trustees decided to fire him by

e

hone, a decision that many board members interviewed expre
biggest regret.

Shortly before 10 p.m., Fran Ganter, the associate athletic director for football,
delivered an envelope to Paterno’s home, just off Penn State’s campus. Inside the

envelope was a telephone number. Paterno called the number, and Garban
answered. Then he
Surma asked if Paterno could hear him O.K. Paterno said that he could. Then
Surma told Paterno of the trustees’ decision. “The board of trustees has determined
effective immediately you are no longer the football coach,” Surma recalled saying.

Then he heard a click. Paterno hung up.

n sat at the tahle far
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rang again. Surma answered. It was Paterno’s wife, Sue, who said, during a short
conversation: “After 61 years, he deserved better.” Then she hung up on Surma.

Board members at the meeting lingered and eventually decided that they
would join Surma at a news conference at a ballroom elsewhere in the Penn Stater.
The ballroom quickly filled as hundreds of onlockers
raised dais behind Surma, who sat stoically as Garban turned over the news
conference to him.

Then Surma announced to a room full of reporters and television cameras, and

to the country watching at home, that Penn State’s board of trustees had fired Joe

g
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A version of this article appears in print on January 19, 2012, on page B15 of the New York edition with the

http:/ /www.nytimes.com/2012/01/19/sports/ncaafootball/penn-state-trustees-recall-decision-to-fire-paterno.html?_r=0 Page 9 of 10

EXHIBITD



Penn State Board Recounts Decision to Fire Paterno - NYTimesg.com 3/16/15, 1:49 PM

headline: We Just Terminated Joe Paterno.

©® 2015 The New York Times Company

http:/ fwww.nytimes.com/2012/01/19/sports/ncaafootball/penn-state-trustees-recall-decision-to-fire-paterno.htmi?_r=0 Page 10 of 10
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement ). entered into by and between The
Pennsylvania State University. the only land grant university chartered in the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania. and Graham B. Spanier. PiuD.. is 1o take etfect July 1. 2010.

WITNESS
WHFRFAS, Graham B Spanier, PhD - ("Dr Spanier™ or the “Presiden:™) has been
employed by The Pennsylvania State University (the “University”) as President of the University
since September 1, [995; and
WHEREAS. the Universitv wishes to continue the employment ol Dr. Spanier as
President of the University in recognition of his extraordinary achievements. and Dr. Spanier
wishes to continue 1o serve as the President and be its employee. subject to the terms and

conditions of this Agreement: and

WHEREAS. The Universily desires o make further arrangements which will suitably
tecognize the extraordivany resporsibilitios aid dutivs of Dy Spanter and s resand i foe s
mauny unique accomplishments thus far during his tenure as President of the University: and

WHERFEAS, both the University and Dr. Spanier intend this Agreement to supersede any
and all prior agrecments with respect to Dr. Spanier’s employment relationship. with the
exception of Section D.3 of the Employment Agreement effective Iuly 1, 2007 (the “Prior

Agreement”); and

WHEREAS., both the University and Dr. Spanier desire to set forth their respective rights



and obligations in this Agreement: and

WHEREAS, by Resolution of January 23, 1982. the Board of Trustees of the University
(the “Board of Trustees™) authorized the President of the Board of Trustees (the “President of the
Board™) to enter into employment agreements with certain senior employees in accordance with
the terms ol said Resolution. and

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions
contained herein. and other valuable consideration. the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged. the parties agrec as follows:

A Term.

The University shail continue the employiment of Dr. Spanier as its President tor a term
from July 1. 2010 through June 30. 2015 (the "Term”). exceot as provided in Section H
(~Termination™). Dr. Spamer hereby accepts such employment upon the terms and conditions set
torth in this Agreement.

B. Powers and Duties.

During the Term of this Agreement. D Spanicr shall serve as President and petfurn
such duties and responsibilitics that e consistont with Ris position s President of the Phabvarsits
under the Corporate Charter. the Corporate Byvlaws. and the Standing Orders of the Board of
[rustees, as may be amended [rom time to time. or which may be assigned to him by or under
the authority of the Board of Trustees consistent with his position as President of the University.
including those duties as are set forth in the Resolution of the Board of Trustees adopted on June

11. 1970, as amended on November 19, 1971, May 30. 1975 and September 23, 1977, and as the

same may be amended from time to time during the term of this Agreement (collectively, the



“Duties”). Dr. Spanier shall devote his full business time attention. skill and efforts to the
faithful performance of the Duties for the University.

Dr. Spanier and the Board of Trustees acknowledge and agree that the Dutics hereunder
shall be limited to those duties customarily performed by presidents of universities comparable in
size and mission to the University. such as educational teadership. faculty and community
relations. budgeting, long range planning. fund raising. development, public relations. student
services. recruitment and retention of personnel. and such other duties as may be authorized or
directed. from time to time. by the Board.

Dr. Spanier shall serve as a member of the Board of Trustees of the University and as a
corporate officer ol the Universiny so fong as such senvice s provided for in the Corpotaie

Charter or Bylaws of the University.

( Compensation
1. Annual Base Salary. As compensation for the services to be performed by

Dr. Spanier pursuant 1o this Agreement and in accordance with industry norms, the University
shall pay 1o Dr. Spanicr an annualized base salary of $700.600 Grom July 1, 2010 through June
10, 2011 fthe “Base Salary . Less apphicable deduetions  Any increases in Bas
hased upon the President’s performance during the preceding fiscal year in connec:ton with the
annual eyaluation of his performance. set forth in Section D of this Agreement. During the ferm
of this Agreement, Dr. Spanier’s Base Salary may be increased. but not decreased.

2. Sienine Bonus. In consideration of executing this Agreement. Dr. Spanier

==

shall receive a one-time signing bonus of $200.000 within sixty (V) days of the execution of this

Agreement by both parties.



3. Retention Incentive.  Beginning with the 2011-12 contract year. Dr.

Spanier shall be eligible to receive an annual retention incentive provided that he completes
service as President to the University through the end of each contract year (June 30). The
amount of the retention incentive. if any. shall be at the sole discretion of the Compensation
Council in accordance with the 1982 resolution of the Board of Trustees authorizing the Council
regarding such compensation matters. but shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of Dr. Spanier’s
then-current annual base salarv. Any retention incentive awarded to Dr. Spanier shall be paid

within sty (60) davs of the conclision of the contract vear inwhich it relates.

3. Retirement Contribution. In addition. the University shall contribute. at its
normal Allernaie Retirement Plan (the Retirement Plan”) contribution rate (currently 9.29%0). 10

the purchase of an annuity contract within the meaning of Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue

Code and in accordance with the terms of the Retirement Plan as managed by TIAA-CREL.
Further. in the event that:
a. limitations of the Internal Revenue Code do not pernut the
University to contribute on a tax-sheltered basis to the Retirement
Plan at its normnal contnbution rule: or
b. less than fifteen (13%) percent of Dr. Spanier's Base Salary is

contributed to Dr. Spanier's Retirement Plan. the University shall
pav to Dr. Spanier. as current compensation. an amount equal to
the dilTerence beiween the amount actually contributed to the

Retirement Plan and the woreater of: (1) the amount that the

gc

University cannot contribute to the Retirement Plan because of



Internal Revenue Code limitations: or (2) fifteen (15%) percent of
Dr. Spanier's Base Salary.

5. Retirement Plan Equivalency. The  Retirement  Plan  Equivalency

referenced in Section D.3 of the Prior Agreement shall continue during this Agreement. The
Retirement Plan Equivalency shall be amended such that Dr. Spanier shall be required to remain
available to perform services for the University pursuant to Sections B. t.5 and L.6 of this
Agreement through June 30. 2017 to vest in the benefits of the plan. Dr. Spanier shall also
hecome vested in the Retirement Plan Fanivalency i his employvment as President is cachier
terminated without Cause. or his death or disability. Dr. Spanier shall not receive the benefits of
tie Retirement Pian Equivalency if his employment as President 1s termmated tor Cause. or it he

voluntarily resigns from his employment as President. or it following the conciusion of his

| - 5 PRST RN
aculty appomin

service as President, hi
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rules for tenured members ol the faculty. A document scparate and apart from this Agreement

shall govern the five year extension of the Retirement Plan Fquivaleney w June 30. 201

D. Amnual Evaluation.

No later than the voech of the Max 2011 meeting of the Board of Trustees. and vach car
thereafter. Dr. Spanier shall provide to the President of the Board of Trustees. the Vice President
of the Board, the immediate past President of the Board and the Chairperson of the Committee
on Finance and Physical Plant of the Board (the "Review Group™) an assessiment of his
performance as President measured against the goals and objectives for the then-current tiscal
vear, as well as his proposed goals and objectives for the next fiscal vear. The Review Group

will review and provide appropriate feedback and direction with respect to Dr. Spanier’s past



performance and future goals and objectives. To aid the Review Group in its annual evaluation,
Dr, Spanier agrees to furnish to the President of the Board such additional oral or written reports

as the Review Group may request.

E Benefits and Reimbursements
1 Standard Benefits. Dr. Spanier shall be eligible to participate in all of the
employee benefit plans of the University applicable o senior executives
2. Supplemental Lifc Insurance.
a. In addition to life insurance provided as a standard benefit in

Section E.1. the University has provided a life insurance death
benelit ol S1.OU0U00 tor Dr. Spanier since September 1. 1997.
The death benehit of this life insurance policy has escalated. and
shall continue lo be escalated annually on each July 1 during the
Term of this Agreement. by the percentage increase in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U. All ltems, for All Urban
Consumers.  1984=100) by multiplying the amount of life
incurance in force for the contract vear then ending by the sum ot
1o cumulative percentage incicase in the Consuiel
Price Index between fuly 1 of the prior year and June 30 of the
rent vear. There will be no diminution of this life insurance
benetit at the conclusion of the Tenw of this Agreement. Provided,
however. CPl increase

conclusion of the Term of this Agreement. In all other respects.



this life insurance coverage shall be maintained in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the University's plan of life insurance

for its senior executives.

3. Supplemental Health Insurance. The University's policy relating to age
and service eligibility requirements lor continuation of health insurance coverage shall be waived
for Dr. Spanier al the conclusion of his presidency.

4. Disability Coverage. In the event of Dr. Spanier’s permancnt disability

during the Term ol this Agreement. the 1iversity shall provide Dro Spanier with disahiliny
coverave, having a total disability benetit of (a) not less than cighty percent (80%) of his Base
yr the contract year in which he becomes disabled through the end of the Term of this
Agreement. and (b) thereafter not less than sixtv-live percent (63%) of his Base Salary for the
contract year in which he becomes disabled until age 70, Any amounts received by Dr. Spanter
under the terms of any long term disability plan applicable to senior executives shall be offset
against the amounts payable to Dr. Spanier pursuant to the disability coverage provided in this
Section B4

S Professional Developmentatid Posi-Presidencs Transition  Upen ihe

campletion of the Term of this Agreement (June 30. 2015 or if this Agreement is terminated
without Cause. Dr. Spanier shall be entitled 1o a paid one year professional development and
post-presidency transition period at the level of his then presidential Basc Salary plus the benefits
provided n Sections k1. F.2. E.3 and E.4 of this Agreement. The post-presidency transition
period shall commence immediately upon the completion of the Term. or the eftective date ot

termination if this Agreement is terminated without Cause. During said period, Dr. Spanier shall



perform scholarly activities in preparation to assume active duties as a tenured member of the
University’s faculty and shall also be available to assist with various University efforts {such as
fundraising and recruiting) as requested by the new President. As a condition of his eligibility
for compensation and benefits under this Section E.5. Dr. Spanier shall refrain from performing
anv type of professional services for any other institution of higher education that will contlict
with his duties with Penn State University. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any professional
services performed by Dr. Spanier for a non-profit entity, government service, or tor-protit
hoards that do not materially detract from his University responsibilities shall not be considered a
conflict with his duties for the Universitv. The Base Salary end benefits that Dr, Spanter

receives under this Secdon E.5 shall not be reduced by e amounis he receives rom othes

earnings. The terms of this Section .5 shall surv ive the expiration of this Agreement,
0. Post-Presidency Faculty Position. Followmg his service as President. Dr.

Spanier shall have the title of President Emeritus. In addition. Dr. Spanier shall continue to hold

a tenured facully position as a Professor in the Depariment of Huwinan Developi
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Studics of the Cotlege of lealth and Human Development ot the University. He may continue to
nse his current academic title of Professor of Human Development and Family Studies,
Sociology. Demography. and Family and Communits Medicine. Upon the conclusion of Dr.
Spanier's service as President; he may. at his option. ¢lect to assume the title of University
Professor. Dr. Spanier’s Base Salary following his services as President shall be paid on a
twelve month basis and shall be $600.000 annuaily. Dr. Spanier’s compensation at this fevel

shall be limited to five (3) years following the conclusion of his professional development

transition period subsequent to the termination of his presidency on June 30, 2015 or the earlier



termination of his presidency without Cause. Dr. Spanier’s employment as Professor subsequent
to this period, including his eligibility for annual salary adjustments. shall be governed by the
University’s policies, rules and regulations applicable to other tenurad members of the University
faculty and not by this Agreement. Dr. Spanier’s office location, academic responsibilities. and
salary after the five year post-presidency period shall be determined in consultation with the
Provost of the University.

The University shall provide Dr. Spanier with administrative support.
including an office and a stalt assistant o assist him with his responsihilities follewing the

conclusion of his presidency. The terms of this Section I".6 shall survive the expiration of this

7. Travel and Other Business Expenses. Dr. Spanier’s reasonable travel and

other business expenses incurred in his capacity as President of the University shall be paid on a
cost reimbursement basis through the University’s annual operating budget. When Dr. Spanier’s
spouse accompanies him on travel for University purposes. the University shall covert
her reasonable ravel expenses. The expenses of Di. Spaniel and s spouse shall be reviewed on
an annual basis by the Prosident of the Board of Tristecs ar BisAwer designee who does not repoit

to the President.

8. Professional Memberships.  The University shall pay the annual dues

and membership fees for the President in professional associations of benefit to the University.
9. Automobile. The University shall continue to provide Dr. Spanier with a
recent model automobile suitable for his role as President. to be owned or leased by the

University, for his exclusive use. The University shall provide or reimburse Dr. Spanier for



insurance, maintenance, and other operating costs of the vehicle, including but not limited to, the
cost of fuel, taxes, licenses. registration. and other similar operating expenses. On an annual
basis. Dr. Spanier shall report all personal use in writing to the Senior Vice President for Finance
and Business of the University.

F. Housing.

During the Term of this Agreement. for the benefit und corvenience of the University in
having the functions of the Office of President efficiently discharged and. in order to enable Dr.
Spanier to fully perform the extensive duties of nis position. he shall, as 4 condition of his
employment as President of the University. continue to reside at the Schreyer House. an on-
owned by the University for this purpose. located at Unmiversity Park, Centre
County. Pennsvlvania. or such other residence as may be determined by the University (the

~

“President’s Residence™). T - all costs of utilities and maintenance of

the structures and grounds of the President’s Residence.

For the benefit and convenience of the University. the President’s residence shall be
available. and shall be used. for University-related business on a regular and continuing basis.

Costs asseciated with such University events shalt be borne by the University.

In the event of Dr. Spanier’s death during the Term of this Agreement (including ali
renewals and extensions). Dr. Spanier’'s tamuly shall be permitted o occupy the President’s
Residence under the same terms and conditions for no less than 90 calendar days fromn the date of

D1. Spanier’s death.



In the event of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability during the Term of this Agreement
(including all renewals and extensions). Dr. Spanier and his family shall be permitted to occupy
the President’s Residence under the same terms and conditions for no less than 90 calendar days

from the date of Dr. Spanier’s permanent disability.

Dr. Spanier and his family shall vacate the President’s Residence no later than thirry (30)

calendar days following the effeciive date of termination ot expiration of Uis Agreement
(including all renewals and extensions).

Upon the termination of this Agreement. the University shall relmburse Dr. Spanier for
the reasenable and necessary expenses ol moving his personal propeity from Stale College.
Pennsylvania to a location of hts choice n the continental United States.

G. Tax Reporting.

The University shall include in the W-2 issued to Dr. Spanier all payments, benefits.
allowances. and reimbursements that are detined as income or otherwise required to be reported
by federal. state or local governments. Except as provided in this Agreement, Dr. Spanier shall
be responsible for the payment ol all personal taxes due and shall make such payments on a

“when due” basis

. Termination.
l. Termination For Cause. [he I niversity mayv terminate this Agreement 2
any time for causc upon writien notice o Dr. Spanier as provided in this Sectuon H.1. For

purposes of this Agreement, the tenm “Cause” shali mean conduct reasonably determined by a

D R n Baned A
1ajority of the Board o

e willful malfeasane

two-thirds 1

a]

by

Dr. Spanier in the performance of his Duties that materially harm the University; (b) actions or

11-



omissions by Dr. Spanier that are undertaken or omitted knowingly and are criminal or
fraudulent and involve material dishonesty or moral turpitude: or () Dr. Spanier being formally
indicted in a court of law of any felony, or any other crime involving misuse or misappropriation
of University funds. In the event the President is terminated for Cause, Dr. Spanier’s
employment as President shall cease immediately. and he shall not be entitled to any further
compensation or benefits as President. except as set forth in the University's various benefit
plans with respect to vesting and rights after termination of employment, nor shall he be entitled
to continuing employment as a memher of the Universityy faculty, including the Post-Presidenc:

Faculty Position set forth in Section E.6 of this Agreement.

2. Jernunauon _Without Cause. fhe Universityv may terminate  this

Agreement without Cause upon a majority vote by the Board of Trustees at any tme for the
convenience of the University upon ninety (90) calendar days prior writlen notice to the
President. Termination ot this Agreement by virtue of the President’s permanent disability or
death (as set forth in Sections 114 and H.3 of this Agreement. respectively) shall not be
consirued as termination without Cause. [f the University terminates this Agreement without
Cause prior o the expiration of the Term of this Agreement. Dr. Spanier shall be entiticd o
reccive pavments oqual to his thein existing Base Salary and benells fur eighteen (18) months
rom the effective date of his termination of emplovment as President, plus the Equivalency
payment referenced in Section C.5 of this Agreement. In the event of such terminaticn without

Cause, Dr. Spanier and his tamily shall vacaie the President’s Residence no later than thirty (30)



-

3. Resignation. Dr. Spanier may resign as President by providing at [east
ninety (90) calendar days written notice to the President of the Board of Trustees. Dr. Spanier’s
employment as President shall cease on the effective date of his resignation, and he shall not be
entitled to any further compensation or benefits as President. except as set forth in the
University s various benelit plans with respect 1o vesting and rights after termination of

employment.

4, dermancint Disabilitv. If Di. Spanicr shall become permanently disabled
during his service as President. this Agreement shall tenminate cifective on ihe date of permancit

disability and he shall veceive all benefits to which he is cititled pursuant to the University's
disability coverage reterenced i Section L plus the Equivalency payment referenced 1n

Section C.3 of this Agreement.

For purposes of this Agreement and based upon Section 409A of the Internal

—
Vs
[}
b
o
&
=
P
ot
a
( R
rd
e
;

.
—
T
v
]
]
n
=
=
1]
M
y—
=
.
e
o
R
joy
=
=
=

.
w
=
[
—
—

nean Dr. Spanier is (1) unable o cngage in any
cubstantial gainful activity by reason of amy medically determinable physical or mental
impairment which can be expecied to result in deat!

period of not less than 12 months or (ii) by reason of any medically determinable physical or

mmental impairment which can be expected to resuit in death or can be expecled io last for a
continuous period ol not less than |2 months. receiving income replacement benefits tor a period

of 1ot less than 3 months under an accident and healih plan covering the University’s employees.

5. Death. In the event of Dr. Spanier's death during the Term of this

Agreement, Dr. Spanier's Base Salary shall cease immediately and this Agreement shall



terminate effective on the date of death, provided however that the Equivalency payment
referenced in Section C.5 of this Agreement shall be paid to Dr. Spanier’s estate no later than

thirty (30) days from the date of death.
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The University recognizes that it is both appropriate and beneficial for Dr. Spanier, in his
capacity as President to engage in outside activities. such as serving on for-profit and nonprotit
boards of directors. consulting. delivering speeches. and writing. However. the President shall
seek prior approval (rom the President of the Board of Trustees before agreeing to serve on the

board of ditectors of any for-ptofit cutities. Dr. Spanier may not engage in any oulside acuvity

that conflicts with his Duties under this Agreement.

All income or other compensation carned by Dr. Spanier in connection with his outside
activities shall be paid 1o and retained by Dr. Spanier and reported in accordance with applicable
tax law and established University policy. Such income. il any. shall have no effect on the
amount of salary. benefits. or other compensation o w hich Dr. Spanier may be entitled 10 under

this Agreement

I. Indemnification. The University shall indemnily Dr. Spanier and hoid him

harmless against legal fees, expenses. judgments. and other financial amounts incurred while
serving in his capacity as President ot the Lniversity to the extent permitted by law. Dr. Spanier

shall continue to be indemnified subscquent o termination of employment as President with

A1d-



respect to acts or omissions occurring while he was serving as President. The terms of this

Section J shall survive the expiration of this Agreement.

K. Mediation. The parties agree that any controversy or claim that either party may
have against the other arising out of or relating to the construction application or enforcement of

this Agreement. as well as any controversy or claim hased upon the alleged breach of any legal
right relating to or arising from Dr. Spanter's emplovment and/or termination of his employment
chall be cubmitied to non-hindine mediation  Within Pfteen (153 dave after delivery of o written
notice of request for mediation {rom one party to the other. the dispute shall be submitied to a
single mediator located 1 the Commonwealth ot Pennsy hamia chosen by the parties. and the
venue for such mediation shalt be in University Park or State College. Pennsylvania. as mutually
agreed by the parties. The costs and fees associated with mediation, excluding attorney’'s fees for

Dr. Spanier, shall be borne by the University.

I. Notice.
Any notice or other communication contemplated by this .Agreement shail be deemed
be given when given in wriling and mailed. rezivierad o1 certilied. postage prepaid with retun

receipt requested. to a party at the address set forth below or such other address as may hereafter

be designated in writing:

To Dr. Spanier: Dr. Graham B. Spanier
Schreyver House
Pennsylvania State University

e e - . D 1
University Park, PA 16802



o The Pennsylvania State University
To the University: Office of the Board of Trustees
205 Old Main

University Parl

PA 16802
Attention: President of the Board of Trustees

rr v

M. Severability and Waivers.

[f any portion of this Agreement shall be held to invalid. inoperative. or unenforceable.
then. so far as possible, effect shall be given to the intent manitested by the portion held invaiid,
moperative. ar unenforceable. and the remainder of this Agreement not fmmd invahd.
inoperative, or unenforceable shall remain in full force and cffeet. No waiver or failure to
enforce any or all rights under this Agreement by either party on any occasion shall constitute a
waiver of that party’s right to assert the same or any other rights on that or any other occasion.

N Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the Commonwealth of Penmsylvania. excluding its choice of laws rules.

0. Counterparts.

This Aereement may be executed i one or more counterparts, each ot which shall be

= Ll

deemed an original but ail of which shail constitute but one of e same instrument. Signatures
delivered by tacsimile and by ematl shall be deemed 1o bean original signature for all purposes.

inctuding for purposes of applicable Rules of Evidence.

P. Complete Agreement.

This Agreement fully supersedes any and all prior agrecments or understandings. writien

or oral, with the exception of Section D.3 of the Prior Agreement as amended by Section C.5 of

-16-



this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be amended. modified, or changed other than by

express written agreement of Dr. Spanier and the President of the Board of Trustees.

Q. Personal Contract.

The obligations and duties of Dr. Spanier shall be personal and not assignable or
delegable in any manner whatsoever. This Agreement shall be binding upon and nure to the
benefit of Dr. Spanier and his executors. administrators. heirs. successors, and permitted assigns,

and upon the University and 1ts successors and assigns

R. No Trust Fund.

Nothing contained in this Agreement and no action taken pursuant to the provistons of
this Agreement shall create or be construed to ereate a trust ot any kind. Yo the extent that the
President acquires a right to receive payments from the University under this Agreement. such

s shall be no greater than the right of any unsecured. general creditor to the University.

S. Miscellaneous.

The headings in this Agreement are for convemence only and shall not be used in
construing or interpreting this Agreement. [he terms “Board.” “Board of lrustecs,” and
“Unjversity” as used in this Agreement. where apnlicable or appropriate, shatl be decmed to
include or refer to any duly autherized beard. committee. officer. or employee of said entity.
Whenever the context requires, the masculine shall include the femninine and neuter. the singular

shall include the plural, and conversely.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties have executed this Employment Agreement as of

the day and year written below.

ATTEST: THE PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY
.47%\/g;ﬂ%wf 4% 7 Z :
" Witness 7 Plemdg Board of Trustees '
)

& 2o/ O
Date 7

ATTEST:

o

/MJ/{/L %‘1" v"

Witness
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HILTZIK STRATEGIES, LLC
Invoices from All dates for Graham Spanier

Date Invoice# Duedate Aging Balance Total Paid Status Pay Date  Billed to
1 2011-11-22 101241 2011-11-22 1814 0.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 paid 2011-12-01 Graham Spanier
2 2012-02-20 10122 2012-02-29 1715 0.00 5,900.00 5,900.00 paid 2012-03-07 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
3 2012-03-26 10123 2012-03-28 1689 .00 7,700.00 7,700.00 paid 2012.04-18 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and [ ewis
4 2012-04-23 10124 2012-04-23 1661 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 paid 2012-05-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
§ 2012-05-28 10125 2012-05-29 1625 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2012-06-18 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
6 2012-06-3¢ 1012-6 2012-06-30 1593 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2012-09-28 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Hamrison Seigel and Lewis
7 2012-07-31 10127 2012-08-01 1561 0.0C 16,700.00  16,700.00 paid 2012-09-28 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
8 2012-08-31 1012-8 2012-08-05 1526 0.00 61,700.00 61,700.00 paid 2012-09-28 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
9 2012-08-25 10129 2012-09-25 1506 0.00 1.882.21 1.882.21 paid 2012-10-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
40 2012-08-30 1012-10  2012-09-30 1501 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2012-10-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
11 2012-11-30  1012-12  2012-12-03 1437 0.00 11,300.00  11,300.00 paid 2013-03-15 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
12 2013-01-31  1012-13  2013-01-31 1378 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-06-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
13 2013-02-28 1012-14  2013-03-01 1349 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-06-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
14 2013-03-31  1012-15  2013-04-01 1318 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.0C paid 2013-06-10 Elizabeth Ainsle Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
15 2013-04-30 1012-16  2013-04-23 1296 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.0¢ paid 2013-06-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
16 2013-05-31 1012-17  2013-06-01 1257 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-06-10 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
17 2013-06-3¢ 1012-18  2013-07-01 1227 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-09-23 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Hartison Seigel and Lewis
18 2013-07-31 1012-18  2013-07-31 1197 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 20113-09-23 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrisan Seigel and Lewis
19 2013-08-31 1012-20  2013-09-01 1165 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-09-23 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
20 2013-09-3¢  1012-21 2013-08-30 1136 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-12-06 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
21 2013-10-31 1012-22  2013-11-01 1104 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2013-12-06 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
22 2013-11-30  1012-23  2013-11-30 1075 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-03-07 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
23 2013-12-31 1012-24  2013-12-31 1044 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-03-07 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
24 2014-01-31  1012-25  2014-01-31 1013 0.00 3.500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-03-07 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
25 2014-02-28 1012-26  2014-02-28 885 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-03-07 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
26 2014-03-31  1012-27  2014-03-31 954 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-06-02 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
27 2014-04-3¢  1012-28  2014-04-30 924 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-06-02 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
28 2014-05-31 101228  2014-06-01 892 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-06-02 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigei and Lewis
29 2014-06-3¢  1012-30 2014-06-30 863 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-08-03 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
30 2014-07-31  1012-31 2014-07-31 832 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 paid 2014-12-01 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
31 2014-08-31 1012-32  2014-08-31 801 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-09-03 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
32 2014-09-01  1012-11 2014-08-01 800 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-12-01 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
33 2014-09-30 1012-33  2014-09-30 771 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-12-01 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrisan Seigel and Lewis
34 2014-10-31 1012-34  2014-10-31 740 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2014-12-01 Eiizabeth Ainslie Schinader Hairison Seigel and Lewls
35 2014-14-30  1012-35  2014-11-30 710 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2015-01-05 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
36 2014-12-31  1012-36  2014-12-31 678 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 paid 2015-03-16 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrisan Seigel and Lewis
37 2015-01-31  1012-37  2015-02-01 647 0.00 3,500.00 3.500.00 paid 2015-03-16 Elizabeth Ainslie Schnader Harrison Seigel and Lewis
38 2015-02-28 1012-38  2015-03-G¢1 619 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a n/a
39 2015-03-31  1012-33  2015-03-31 589 3,50000  3,500.00 0.00 overdue nfa nfa
40 2015:04-30 101240 201504-30 559 350000  3,500.00 0.00 overdus nja nfa
41 2015-05-31  1012-41 2015-05-31 528 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue nia n/a
42 2015-06-30 1012-42  2015-06-30 498 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue nia n/a
43 2015-07-31 101243 2015-07-31 467 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a n/a
44 2015-08-31 101244 2015-08-31 438 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a nia
45 2015-08-30 1012-45  2015-09-3¢ 406 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a n/a
46 2015-10-31 101248  2015-10-31 375 3,500.00 3.500.00 0.00 averdue nfa nfa
47 2015-11-30 1012-47  2015-11-3¢ 345 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue nfa n/a
48 2015-12-31 1012-48  2015-12-31 314 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a nia
49 2016-01-31 101249  2015-12-31 314 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a n/a
50 2016-02-29 1012-50 2016-02-0t 282 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a nia
51 2016-03-31 1015-52  2016-02-04 278 3,500.00 3.500.00 0.00 overdue nfa nfa
52 2016-04-30  1015-53 2016-04-30 193 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue nfa n/a
53 2016-05-31 1015-54  2016-06-30 132 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue nfa n/a
54 2016-06-3¢ 1015-55  2016-07-30 102 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue nia nfa
55 2016-07-31 1015-56 2016-08-30 71 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a n/a
56 2016-08-31 1015-57  2016-09-30 40 3,500.00 3.500.00 0.00 overdue nfa nfa
57 2016-08-30 1015-58  2016-10-30 10 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 overdue n/a n/a
58 2016-10-31 1015-58  2016-11-30 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.0C open n/a n/a
TOTALS 73,500.00 299,182.21 225,682.21
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SULLIVAN & CROMWELL LLP
T:ch:u:?:‘:: 13;?22"29:35‘-673530: 1700 New @w«é L%W, N W
WWW. SULLCROM.COM /Me 700
Washington, D6, 20006-5215

NEW YORK ¢ LOS ANGELES * PALDO ALTO

FRANKFURT » LONDON » PARIS
BEIJING * HONG KONG » TOKYO

MELBOURNE * SYDNEY

February 3, 2016

Via Federal Express

Pennsylvania State University,
Risk Management Office,
227 W. Beaver Ave., Suite 103,

170N

State College, PA 16801.
Dear Ms. Janowiak:

Enclosed are statements for work done for our client, Dr. Graham Spanier,
with regard to his appeal in the Superior Court of Pennsylvania. The first statement was
sent to Dr. Spanier on September 3, 2015, for our services in supervising, briefing, and
arguing the appeal. The second statement was sent to Dr. Spanier last week on January
28, 2016, for our services while the appeal was under submission. The Superior Court
recently rendered a favorable decision that quashes the charges at issue in appeal.

With that stage of the appeal at an end, Liz Ainslie at Schnader Harrison
Segal & Lewis LLP indicated that I should forward our statements to you for payment
based on Dr. Spanier’s right of indemnification by Penn State. Please let me know if you
have any questions or would like to discuss.

Sincerely,

G|

Brent J™McIntosh

cc:  Dr. Graham Spanier



SULLIVAN & CROMWELL LLP
TELEPHONE: 1-202-856-7500
FACSIMILE: 1-202-283-6330 1700 ./Véa; %‘é -%emw, ‘/V'W
WWW.EULLCROM.COM g_ 700
Weihington, DG, 20006-5215

NEW YORR ¢ LOS ANGELES » #ALC ALTC
FRANKFUAT € LONDON * PARLE
BEIJING » HONG XOND * TOKYC

MELBOURNE » SYDNEY

January 28, 2016

Via email and U.S. Mail

Dr. Graham Spanier,
425 Windmere Drive,

Re:  Privilege Appeal

Dear Dr. Spanier:

Attached is a statement for work done with regard to your privilege appeal
and oral argument in the SLIDEI'XOT Court of Penn__sv!v_a_n,!a Please let me know if you have
any questions.

Smcerely,

Brent J. clntosh

(Enclosure)



SULLIVAN & CROMWELL LLP
Tt 1 dna g 1700 Noww Yorke Hoa, N H.
‘ ' Weskington, DE 200065215
HELEGUNNS * SYONEY
Graham Spanier Invoice Date: January 28, 2016
425 Windmere Drive Invoice Number: 0379053
Apt. 2A Firm Reference: 022453.00001

State College, PA 16801

REDACTED - ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE

Payment Due Upon Receipt

——— s 1
2l . £ the followi N
(1)  Wire transfor (or ACH) to: {Proforred Method) {2)  IF & wire transier {or ACH) carnot be initiated,
please issue & check payable 1o:
Citibank, Private Bankiag Division
153 East Sird Street Sullivan & Cromweli LLP
New York, NY 10021 125 Broad Street
ABA¥: 021000089 Attention: Treasury Dept. / Rm, 202}
Account Namber: 3981441578 New York, NY 10004-2438
SWIFT Code: CITIUSI3
I r credit, ph i 2 the invoice 5 ¢ for all enls.

£-mail notification of payments may be sent to billpayments@sulicrom.con.

1f you have any questions, pleass contact:
Collsctions Deparmsnt
{212) 358-7100
collections@sullcrom.com

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP US Federal ID# 13-5420320

BnBvan & Cromwsll LLP '3 3 regisiwedt e ZabINY dertnanatvd aaatiiaied und g biws of ip Siade ot tine York, The
AT unaion I AURTUDIE UPCN MG L OF 5 W SUCTOm a8t




VAN & CROMWET

T 1
BLIER AR NS XANJIVE XE Ao hbn Akuk

TELEPHONE: 1-202-956-7300

FACSIMILE: 1-202-293-6330 1700 New W%m, NH
WWW. BULLCROM.COM /M 700

AP T

NEW YORK * LOBS ANGELES * PALD ALTO
FRANKFURY ¢ LONDON * PARIY
BEIING ¢ HONS XONG * TOKYD

MELACURNE » SYDREY

September 3, 2015

Via email and U.S. Mail

Mr. Graham Spanier,
425 Windmere Drive,
Apt. 2A,
State College, PA 16801.

Re:  Privilege Appeal
Dear Mr. Spanier:

Attached is a statement for work done with regard to your privilege appeal
and oral argument in the Superior Court of Pennsylvania. Please let me know if you have
any questions.

Sincerely,

NN/

O A

Brent J. McIntosh

(Attachment)



SULLIVAN & CROMWELL LLP

TRLEFHONK: +1-202-850-7800
FAGSIMILE +1-202-393-8330
WHNW SULLCROM CoM

.

Fonlinee Ceonalan
Widaliaul opalici

425 Windmere Drive
Apt. ZA
State College, PA 16801

1700 Ao Qosd S,

00 Aew Uoste Slue, .

W
Washington, DE 20006-5215

LOR ANGELES * REW YORK ¢ PALO ALTO
FRANKFUAT * LONDON * SARIS
BLIJING * HONG KONEG * TOKRYO

MELEOUNRNE * SYONEY

Invoice Date: September 2, 2015
Invoice Number: 0571938
Firm Reference: 022453.00001

REDACTED - ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE

Our Fee,

DISBURSEMENTS

Travel between Washington, D.C. and Harrisburg, PA and

expenses in Harrisburg in early August

Scthan & Cromwel LU

avalatia

$570,407.50

1,224.73

HOdar T s of e Stk Of Naw YOrk. The persoml Bamity of W pa/ent is imied 1o v 40t pomiimng n wuch s,

oF 2l wenr



Graham Spanier
022453,00001

DISBURSEMENTS

Courier services 42.57

Filing fees 608.25
Reproducing documenis 231.12
Document preparation and miscellaneous disbursements 1,009.44

Total

Payment Due Upon Receipt

September 2, 2015
0571938
Page 2

e
$573,523.61

fd i {ug.one of the followin: igns:

(1) Wisc ransfer (os ACH) to: {Preferred Method) {2) 2 wire srensfer {or ACH) connot be initinted,
plesse issue a check payabie to:
Citibank, Private Banking Division

153 East 53rd Street Sultivan & Cromwei! LLP
New York, NY 10022 115 Broad Street

ABA#; 021000083 Attention: Treasury Dept. / Rm. 2021
Account Number: 9981441575 New York, NY 10004-2498

E-mail notification of payments may be sent to bilip {@suil com.

If you have any questions, please contact:
Collections Depantment
(212} 558-7100
collections@sullcrom.com

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP US Federal 1D# 13-5420326




